GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON

AGENDA

Meeting Police and Crime Committee
Date Thursday 26 November 2015
Time 10.00 am

Place Chamber, City Hall, The Queen’s
Walk, London, SE1 2AA

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee

Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly /webcasts where you can also view past
meetings.

Members of the Committee

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair) Kemi Badenoch AM
Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair) Andrew Dismore AM
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair) Len Duvall AM
Tony Arbour AM Roger Evans AM

Jennette Arnold OBE AM

A meeting of the Committee has been called by the Chair of the Committee to deal with the business
listed below.
Mark Roberts, Executive Director of Secretariat
Wednesday 18 November 2015

Further Information

If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities
please contact: Joanna Brown or Teresa Young; Telephone: 020 7983 6559;

E-mail: joanna.brown@london.gov.uk/teresa.young@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458

For media enquiries please contact Mary Dolan, External Relations Officer on 020 7983 4603.
Email: mary.dolan@london.gov.uk. If you have any questions about individual items please contact
the author whose details are at the end of the report.

This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as
noted on the agenda. A quide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available
at www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.

There is access for disabled people, and induction loops are available. There is limited underground
parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a first-come first-served basis.
Please contact Facilities Management on 020 7983 4750 in advance if you require a parking space or
further information.

v1 2015



If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Si usted, o algiin conocido desea recibir una copia del order del dia, acta o informe en
Braille o en su propio idioma, y gratis, no dude en ponerse en contacto con nosotros
llamando al teléfano 020 7983 4100 o por correo electronico:
assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Se vocé, ou algliem que conheca precisa uma copia da ordem do dia, anotacées ou
relatorios em prensa grande ou Braille, ou em outra lingu, entao por favour nos
telephone em 020 7983 4100 ou e-mail assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.

Haddii ama ama qof aad tagaanid, uu ugu baahan yahay koobiga ajendhada, haddaladii
ama warbixinta in far waaweyn loogu qoro ama farta qofka indoolaha akhrin karo, amaba
luugad kale, fadlan naga soo wac telefoonkan 020 7983 4100 ama email
assembly.translations @london.gov.uk.

Ta ba ri enikeni ti o ba ni ife ni eda ewe nla ti ighimo awon asoju tabi papa julo ni ede ti
abinibi won, ki o kansiwa lori ero ibanisoro. Nomba wa ni 020 7983 4100 tabi ki e kan si

wa lori ero assembly translations@london.gov.uk.

A ddA Al di el dL ddl A8 uldd serg (auyBl), Bz (24 i) s
Rulgd (meael)-dl Asa Hiel waMl owdedl 5 adanl »aal sle sl susi wddl
e, dl gut s34+ 020 7983 4100 Guz s+t »iaal assembly . translations@london.gov.uk
Guz iy §-Hoa 530,

ST 91 S+ (Fe 9 arsel, N6 9 Fresa 9T % 9T 2190 91 (d25
T2 Sl SR SIEE CP 08 Bl S W 0T STETWE0E 020 7983 4100 & ST 104 (=R Sahe]
9l assembly.translations@london.gov.uk ¥ Z-TI27& (HISTCHTS Fee |

# 208 7 oS Tae fan Iu fowadt &, 873, Hifdar &t ot & faleet &t anit, ¥ niugt
ﬁﬁaﬂﬁwaﬁﬁ%wﬁ'ﬁwfﬁﬁaﬁaﬁﬁ?@ﬁlﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁwaﬁlﬁmom?%amm
Q?ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂu@ ¥ #IH® &9 : assembly.translations@london.gov.uk

i a'fJ'LJJ’JEJJL_,:LJLJJf!JUJ/LL; JL-..-U’L.JU“.J ;LJ"‘” (_éErJu-fFu 'JJ/’Ji-HL-[FL—- ‘l'L.__.- j
assembly.translations@london.gov.uk == Lu u"’d! sQ;;szl_)FxDEG ?9834100.,,}”

150

a0

Quality
Management

Certificate Number: FS 80233



Agenda
Police and Crime Committee
Thursday 26 November 2015

1 Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements

To receive any apologies for absence and any announcements from the Chair.

2 Declarations of Interests (Pages 1 - 4)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Joanna Brown, joanna.brown@london.gov.uk and Teresa Young,
teresa.young@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 6559

The Committee is recommended to:

(a) Note the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at
Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests;

(b) Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests
in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the
Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and

(c) Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be
relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received
which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register
of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA’s
Monitoring Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and to note any necessary
action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s).

3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 44)

The Committee is recommended to confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Police
and Crime Committee held on 22 October 2015 to be signed by the Chair as a correct
record.

The appendix to the minutes set out on pages 9 to 44 is attached for Members and officers only
but is available from the following area of the GLA’s website: www.london.gov.uk/mayor-
assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee




Summary List of Actions (Pages 45 - 54)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Joanna Brown, Joanna.brown@london.gov.uk and Teresa Young,
teresa.young@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 6559

The Committee is recommended to note the completed and outstanding actions
arising from previous meetings of the Committee, as listed in the report.

Question and Answer Session with the Mayor's Office for Policing and
Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service (Pages 55 - 74)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Matt Bailey, matt.bailey@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4014

The Committee is recommended to:

(a) Note, as background to the question and answer session with the Deputy
Mayor for Policing and Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service, the
monthly report for the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime, attached at
Appendix 1 to the report;

(b) Note, as background to the question answer session with the Deputy Mayor
for Police and Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service, a summary table
(attached at Appendix 2 to the report) setting out the impact of the
recommendations in the Committee’s report, Tightening the Net; and

() Note the report and answers given by the Deputy Mayor for Policing and

Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service to the questions asked by
Members.

Police and Crime Committee Work Programme (Pages 75 - 78)

Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat
Contact: Janette Roker, Janette.roker@london.qgov.uk; 020 7983 6562

The Committee is recommended to:

(@) Agree its updated work programme, as set out in paragraph 4.1 of the report;
and

(b) Note the summary of its site visit on 29 October 2015 to the Metropolitan
Police Specialist Training Centre (MPSTC), as set out at paragraph 4.2 of the
report.



Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled for Thursday, 3 December 2015 at 10am in
the Chamber, City Hall.

Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Declarations of Interests

Report to: Police and Crime Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 26 November 2015

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

2.2

23

3.1

Summary

This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary
interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and
gifts and hospitality to be made.

Recommendations

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted
as disclosable pecuniary interests’;

That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific
items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding
withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and

That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant
(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the
time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and
noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any
necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted.

Issues for Consideration

Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf:

! The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly,
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered” must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London
Borough X.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk v7/2015

Page 1




3.2

Member

Interest

Tony Arbour AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Richmond

Jennette Arnold OBE AM

Committee of the Regions

Gareth Bacon AM

Chairman of LFEPA; Chairman of the London Local
Resilience Forum; Member, LB Bexley

Kemi Badenoch AM

Mayor John Biggs AM

Mayor of Tower Hamlets (LB); Member, LLDC Board

Andrew Boff AM

Member, LFEPA; Congress of Local and Regional
Authorities (Council of Europe)

James Cleverly AM MP

Member of Parliament

Tom Copley AM

Member, LFEPA

Andrew Dismore AM

Member, LFEPA

Len Duvall AM

Roger Evans AM

Deputy Mayor; Committee of the Regions; Trust for
London (Trustee)

Nicky Gavron AM

Darren Johnson AM

Member, LFEPA

Jenny Jones AM

Member, House of Lords

Stephen Knight AM

Member, LFEPA; Member, LB Richmond

Kit Malthouse AM MP

Member of Parliament

Joanne McCartney AM

Steve O’Connell AM

Member, LB Croydon; MOPAC Non-Executive Adviser for
Neighbourhoods

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM

Murad Qureshi AM

Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of
Europe)

Dr Onkar Sahota AM

Navin Shah AM

Valerie Shawcross CBE AM

Richard Tracey AM

Chairman of the London Waste and Recycling Board;
Mayor's Ambassador for River Transport

Fiona Twycross AM

Member, LFEPA

[Note: LB - London Borough; LFEPA - London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority;
LLDC - London Legacy Development Corporation; MOPAC — Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime]

Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism
Act 2011, provides that:

where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered
or being considered or at

()  ameeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or

(i)  any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s
functions

they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and

must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting

UNLESS

Page 2



33

34

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

5.1

- they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality —
Appendix 5 to the Code).

Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is
knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading.

In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that
was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising -
namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it
would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.

Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and
the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or
decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to
make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also
that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence.

Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person
from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the
previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to
disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend
at which that business is considered.

The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set
out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-
line database may be viewed here:
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/qgifts-and-hospitality.

If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of
the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from
whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members
are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when
the interest becomes apparent.

It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or
hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the
Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so
regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in
any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA.

Legal Implications

The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

Page 3



Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer:  Joanna Brown and Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officers

Telephone: 020 7983 6559
E-mail: joanna.brown@london.gov.uk and teresa.young@london.gov.uk

Page 4



Agenda Item 3
GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON |

MINUTES

Meeting: Police and Crime Committee

Date: Thursday 22 October 2015

Time: 10.00 am

Place: Chamber, City Hall, The Queen’s
Walk, London, SE1 2AA

Copies of the minutes may be found at:
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee

Present:

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair)

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair)

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair)
Tony Arbour AM

Jennette Arnold OBE AM

Kemi Badenoch AM

Andrew Dismore AM

Len Duvall AM

1 Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements (Item 1)
1.1 An apology for absence was received from Roger Evans AM.

1.2 It was noted that an apology for absence had been received on behalf of Stephen
Greenhalgh, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime.

13 During the meeting, the Chair welcomed HMI Stephen Otter, Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of

Constabulary, who observed the meeting from the public gallery.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 5



2.1

3.1

4.1

4.2

5.1

52

Greater London Authority
Police and Crime Committee
Thursday 22 October 2015

Declarations of Interests (Item 2)
Resolved:

(@) That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at
Agenda Item 2, be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests.

(b) That Jennette Arnold OBE AM’s declaration of a non-pecuniary interest as she
is a Patron of the UK Association of Forensic Nursing (UKAFN) in relation to
Agenda Item 5 (Question and Answer Session with the Mayor’s Office for
Policing and Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service), and in particular the
discussion relating to custody healthcare arrangements, be noted.

Minutes (Item 3)
Resolved:

That the minutes of the Police and Crime Committee meeting held on 24 September
2015 be signed by the Chair as a correct record.

Summary List of Actions (Item 4)
The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
Resolved:

That the outstanding actions arising from previous meetings of the Committee, as
listed in the report, be noted.

Question and Answer Session with the Mayor's Office for Policing and
Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service (Item 5)

The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat as background to
putting questions to the following invited guests:

* Helen Bailey, Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPACQ);
and

*  Craig Mackey QPM, Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service (MPS).

A transcript of the discussion is attached at Appendix 1.

Page 6



53

54

55

5.6

Greater London Authority
Police and Crime Committee
Thursday 22 October 2015

During the course of the discussion, the Deputy Commissioner, MPS, agreed to provide the
Committee with:

The MPS’s response to the Home Office’s further consultation on police funding;
The net cost of providing mutual aid to other police authorities;

The contribution Operation Omega has made to reducing violence;

A copy of the Stop and Search arrest form;

A full record of the complaints in respect of healthcare arrangements in custody
suites; and

A breakdown by borough of the number of young people kept in custody suites
during a weekend because local authority care was not available.

During the course of the discussion, noting that negotiations were ongoing with the National
Health Service (NHS), the Chief Operating Officer, MOPAC, stated that she would share
information about the commissioning arrangements for custodial healthcare to the NHS at an
appropriate time.

The Chair stated that due to time constraints the Committee had been unable to ask all of its
questions but would write to the guests about them.

Resolved:

(@) That the monthly report from MOPAC, attached at Appendix 1 to the report,
be noted.

(b) That the summary table, attached at Appendix 2 to the report, setting out
the impact of the recommendations in the Committee’s report, 7ightening
the Net, be noted.

(c) That the Committee’s report and discussion with the Deputy Mayor for
Policing and Crime and the MPS be noted.

(d) That the Chair write to the guests requesting the follow-up action, as

outlined above.

Page 7



Greater London Authority
Police and Crime Committee
Thursday 22 October 2015

6 Police and Crime Committee Work Programme (Item 6)

6.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat.
6.2  Resolved:

That the work programme, as set out in paragraph 4.1 of the report, be noted.

7 Date of Next Meeting (Item 7)

7.1 The date of the next meeting was scheduled for Thursday, 12 November 2015 at 10am in the
Chamber, City Hall.

8 Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent (Item 8)

8.1 There was no other business the Chair considered urgent.

9 Close of Meeting

9.1 The meeting ended at 12.02pm.

Chair Date
Contact Officer: Joanna Brown or Teresa Young; Telephone: 020 7983 6559;

E-mail: joanna.brown@london.gov.uk/teresa.young@london.gov.uk;
Minicom: 020 7983 4458

Page 8



Appendix 1
Police and Crime Committee — 22 October 2015

Transcript of Agenda Item 5 — Question and Answer Session with the Mayor’s Office
for Policing and Crime and Metropolitan Police Service

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Can | welcome our guests this morning. We have Helen Bailey, Chief
Operating Officer from the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPACQ).

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): | think you have had an
apology from Stephen [Greenhalgh, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime]?

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): We have, thank you. Yes, he was kind enough to contact us.

Also, welcome to Craig Mackey QPM, Deputy Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS). Thank
you both for attending today. We have a range of topics to discuss with you. The first we are going to start
with is about the finances of the MPS. It is an extremely topical issue and one on which the Commissioner has
been quite vocal in the past two weeks.

Perhaps | can start with you, Deputy Commissioner. The MPS’s funding is obviously made up of various
streams. One is the Police National Grant which is determined by the Police Funding Formula. You have
already been before us and said that you expect in the Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) to have
approximately £800 million taken out of the budget. | believe that is now probably the best case scenario. At
the same time we have had this consultation on the Home Office wanting to change the Police Funding
Formula. We talked about this on the last occasion. It looks like that figure is now going to hit at the same
time and could be approximately £184 million. Can I just ask, if that does go ahead what impact will it have on
forthcoming budgets?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Thank you, Chair. When we
last met you remember we talked about how there are a number of moving parts that assemble the budget.
Obviously we all await the CSR announcement later in the year. When we last met we talked about the first
round of consultation on the funding formula. We talked about some of the detailed observations we had
around some of the mechanics of the formula and how we did not think it was right. Since then a different
iteration has been released which, on the projections at the moment, shows London losing £184 million. That
is clearly a considerable sum of money on top of whatever comes out of the CSR. What we have done is
obviously look at the work that has gone behind that formula. We have made a number of detailed
observations and - to save time for Members - | am sure we would be happy to share the submission we put in
in terms of the detail around why the particular indicators do not work.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): We had your original response. If you have a later one that would be very
helpful.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): We are more than happy to
share that. There are a couple of quite technical things in there. One of the particular challenges for London -
that is recognised as unique in the letter but which does not offer us a satisfactory solution at the moment to
solve that - is that the central grant drops by £184 million. There is a recognition in the letter that the

Page 9



NICC [National, International Capital City] money - of which at present we get about £170 million - is currently
being reviewed and will need to move.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Hopefully upwards.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): We absolutely hope upwards.
The challenge for an incoming Mayor is that those two processes are running in parallel but not at the same
time. You have got to comment on the completeness of the funding formula for London without knowing the
NICC settlement. | do not in any way say there is bad faith in this or anything like that all. However, that is an
extremely difficult judgement to make if you do not know the totality of the settlement.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): You cannot plan.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): You cannot plan but also, of
course, it means there is a challenge each year of getting a separate ring-fenced part of the budget that is
effectively assessed each year going forward. The document that came back out and the commentary does
recognise - and Members who have worked with local authorities will know the same - that on all the indicators
London is at the extreme [end], ie the demographics and those sorts of issues. It notices that and then moves
on. Part of our suggestion and feedback is that we have got a formula that - it is for others to argue whether
it works outside London - for a large part of British policing does not appear to work and we all recognise that.
That is a very difficult position for us as professionals, for the Mayor, for oversight bodies and for London as a
whole to respond to.

Underneath there are then some detailed comments and observations we have made around some of the
indicators. In the first tranche you remember we had a conversation about something called Band D Council
Tax. Council Tax has come out of this new formula completely. You are in a scenario now where for Band D
Council Tax in London the police element is about £200 a year. For West Midlands it is half of that and for
Greater Manchester it is slightly more. There is no recognition of the difference in Council Tax. Our
suggestion is that we are looking at the formula through a particular lens but at the moment we struggle to see
how it works for London.

We are meeting this afternoon with colleagues and the Home Secretary around this. The £184 million if you
do nothing else - and | am not suggesting you would do this - would take another 3,000 officers off the
baseline of the MPS. It is a considerable movement of money.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Of course, for City of London Police the Home Office has accepted that
you cannot apply the national funding formula to that force. They have taken that out of the funding formula
and you are saying that perhaps something similar should happen with the MPS.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Far be it from me to suggest
to Home Office and Treasury colleagues how to do it but there are a number of options, of which that would
be one. | recognise the challenges for anyone who has got to do this at a national level in terms of getting
something that works. | am fairly unique in British police. | have probably worked at the two extremes. | have
worked in Cumbria where the sparsity and rural challenges present particular problems for developing a
sustainable funding formula. We see that in the outcome in relation to Cumbria. | have also worked in London
where, if you just take a snapshot of what we have been involved in over the last eight to ten days, about
1,500 officers have been involved in the State visit. As | always say to people, they do not come out of a
separate box. All the numerals on their shoulders indicate they are from Islington, Camden, Bexley and
Bromley. They all come into central London. There will be another march at the Israeli Embassy at the

Page 10



weekend. It is very hard to build a funding formula that addresses that at the same time as addressing
Cumbria, West Midlands and wherever. There are a number of potential solutions and we now have to try to
work with the Home Office to get more clarity and a better deal for London.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Yes, we would be happy to support you and we have done to date.
Obviously with the NICC grant you have to bid for that on an annual basis.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Is that something that the Home Office are receptive to, putting that to a
multi-year settlement?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): We do not know, is the
honest answer. At the moment all the letter refers to is fixing 2016/17. They are my simplistic words, it is
written better than that. It recognises that during 2017/18 there needs to be the development of a funding
model for London that is substantial, robust and something that survives scrutiny. It is not a political point at
all but that is clearly a risk for anyone as we approach the impact of that coupled with the CSR. That is an
incredibly difficult number of dials moving all at once to manage.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): OK. | have noted that Her Majesty’s Inspector of Constabulary
[HMI] Stephen Otter QPM [Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC)] is attending our meeting.
Very welcome, Stephen.

| am just wondering, Craig, whether HMIC did have a role in advising the Home Office as well or putting
forward your position?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): In fairness to the HMIC they
have just published a report this week that talks about efficiency. It is nice to see that the work that MOPAC,
the MPS and many others across London have done over the years has been recognised in terms of getting a
good position. This is not for want of trying and working around it. | probably cannot quote what the HMIC
position is exactly but | think if they were here they would probably say they do not give individual positions
on whether the funding formula is right, fair and proper. | am sure as part of the next round of Police
effectiveness, efficiency and legitimacy (PEEL) assessments they will pick up any differential issues around
funding which will emerge with a moving funding formula.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Hopefully the Home Office will heed those before that comes out.

Can | turn to you, Helen? We have obviously had to have debates about future funding which is causing all of
us concern. The Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime has stated in an interview that he has taken legal advice
on whether to judicially review the Home Office. This was a threat that other Police and Crime Commissioners
(PCCs) were making across the country prior to the recent change. | notice West Midlands, for example, was
very vocal in saying they would judicially review. Given under the revised funding formula their budget actually
goes up, | suspect that has dropped. Is that something that you are actively considering?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): We are considering all
avenues to get the Home Office to understand this, as Craig has just illustrated. The lack of certainty due to
the NICC being on a year-on-year grant and us being more heavily dependent upon it than ever before,
combined with the MPS and London forces being taken out of some elements of the funding formula and
suffering this disproportional loss and with the consequent lack of ability to plan for the MPS - which is a

Page 11



greater lack of ability to plan a greater sum of money than any other force - has the result that prima facie -
and this is what we have taken some advice about - there is a disproportionate unfairness on the MPS if things
continue as they are now. There is a long way between taking legal advice and actually issuing proceedings
and we hope never to have to do that. However, clearly we would have been negligent not consider whether
or not that was a possibility.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Agreed. What are the next steps as far as you are concerned about making
the case to the Home Office, and how do you think they are responding to date?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): So far - as

Craig Mackey has said - we have made the points at each individual stage to the Home Office. There has been
a protracted set of correspondence which is of the sort that is drafted by officials and signed by politicians,
individual conversations and lots of working level contact with Home Office and Treasury officials. We are
doing everything we can. This afternoon we have a meeting of the Mayor and the Home Secretary - which
both Mr Mackey and | will be at - where we hope to make the points to her directly about the disproportionate
impact on London of the current state of play.

We are very conscious that the conversation about the funding formula is not actually due to drive itself to a
close until 30 October 2015 so there is still time for the Home Office to take our point of view on board and
change what they are doing and we very much hope they will. We need them to do that so that by the time
we get into the rest of the conversations about the funding formula - which are happening in parallel - we
have some certainty about at least one of the various moving elements in all of this.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Thank you.

Len Duvall AM: It is an issue you have raised previously in other places, it is about what options are open for
Government to recognise the special nature of London in terms of its capacity. As this discussion and
conversation moves into practical reality about what is given to London’s Police Service it is quite clear that if
the Government says, “Thank you very much, we are cutting you back on your main policing grant but we will
look at the Police Capital Grant” that would not be in the interests of policing in the long-term in this capital.
Are we clear about that and is that factored into your conversations with officials? Clearly they would look at
that as an option.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): Yes. The rhetoric has
been from the beginning - | paraphrase, | hope not unhelpfully - “Do not worry too much about the formula.
NICC is an opportunity to make that up in particular for 2016/17”. Our response to that has been, “Well, we
cannot plan when there is no certainty about the quantum. We cannot plan if you just give us a fix for
2016/17.” The history of NICC is that it is scrutinised to such a degree and ring-fenced that makes it very
difficult to do the kinds of overall planning around resource allocation that we would like to do. We have been
very clear that there is a policy inconsistency there. If you are creating Police and Crime Commissioners and
there is greater independence and greater self-reliance then to have a greater proportion of the funding reliant
upon individual grants does not seem logical. We have made those points very strongly at both an official and
political level.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): You are absolutely right to
raise the long-term [funding issue] around policing. The NICC is a very tactical assessment. We have teams of
people going through line-by-line what we do with horses, dogs, how much time is spent on it. It is not a
strategic funding model. It is an incredibly tactical assessment. | do not knock people who have done this in

Page 12



the past but that is not a long-term way to plan when the main grant is falling as well. That potentially
compounds things. It does transfer more control of money from a Mayor to a Home Secretary.

Len Duvall AM: There are constitutional issues but it also weakens our grant base and would not add on,
which is clearly the issue.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): Clearly we hope your negotiations are successful. We really do
because this could have such dire consequences for policing across London. | questioned the Mayor about this
yesterday and he confirmed he will be looking at Council Tax as part of this. If you do not get what you want
and the funding you want, have you been instructed by the Mayor, or have you indeed been potentially urging
the Mayor, to look at either freezing or slightly increasing Council Tax in order to make up some of this
shortfall in funding for the MPS?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): The situation on
Council Tax is that the Mayor is going to have to look at that in the round. We have merely responded, at this
stage, to the funding proposals and illustrated the consequences of them in the context in which we are at the
moment. We have not jumped ahead to where we will be at the end of this.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): OK. In the letter - which | am sure you drafted - that went to
the Home Secretary from the Mayor' he did say that one of the consequences could be that he would not be
able to meet his manifesto commitment to cut Council Tax. Yesterday he did say he would be reviewing his
Council Tax position if it got to that stage. Has he asked you to do any work on that yet?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): No. Work on Council
Tax would typically be done by his other advisors elsewhere in the Greater London Authority (GLA) rather than
in MOPAC.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): One of the challenges - | saw
the figures quoted yesterday and sadly over the summer | have become a bit of an “anorak” on these numbers.
One per cent of the police element of Council Tax will raise £5.2 million. There is a 2% ceiling. In the
modelling we have done over the summer, if you run it over the whole of the CSR and assuming the
requirement to go to a precept if you exceed 2% - and clearly at GLA level a decision could be made about
whether to increase the police element - at the moment the way the gearing works it delivers between

£5 million and £6 million depending on the Council Tax base.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): It is clearly a political decision for the Mayor to make. If the
Mayor was so minded and felt actually, “I need to keep police numbers up and | am committed to
Neighbourhood Policing” - which he reaffirmed yesterday to me - then actually he could allocate all of it. GLA
officers came and gave me a slightly lower figure than | gave but it was about £155 million over two years if
the whole element went to policing.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | saw that. | am not
disputing the figures. However, | am not sure because of the way the legislation is worked with Police and
Crime Commissioners as freestanding bodies - although it does not trigger the total 2% ceiling on the Council
Tax for Londoners - whether the element of it that is subscribed to the police would trigger it because, of
course, the Mayor is a separate precepting body in the purest sense. We are certainly looking at all those

! Letter from the Mayor to the Home Secretary, dated 15 September 2015.
Page 13



imaginative ideas. Is there other money you can use? Are there different ways of doing things? Clearly we are
exploring all of those ideas and those debates take place quite regularly.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): It is probably worth
just being clear with the Committee that the paragraph in the letter - which is the Mayor’s letter to the Home
Secretary of 15 September - is quite a complicated paragraph drafted - and | claim no credit for this - largely in
the subjunctive. It says if certain things were to happen certain other things might follow. There is no
absolute commitment or bit of work implied in that, merely an illustration of what the consequences would be.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): Absolutely. However, he did yesterday confirm to me he may
well look at this if he does not get what he wants. Very clearly the battle is to get the funding you need for
London which we all agree with.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): Absolutely. We are
absolutely focused on trying to sort out the problem we have got at the moment.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): Thank you.

Andrew Dismore AM: | would like to look at what some of these cuts in funding might mean. The
Commissioner last week was talking about losing 5,000 and 8,000 officers. Do you think that is a realistic
projection?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): It is entirely dependent on
what comes out of the CSR in November. We have been really clear on the work we have done - we have
certainly been quoted on it - that in the MPS’s budget at the moment there is probably somewhere between
£150 million to £220 or £230 million that over a four-year period you could realistically continue to take out
and keep officer numbers at or about 30,000. Beyond that you have got to start at some point looking at the
officer number line. The way the budgets are constructed is you build the budget from the base up. At the
moment police officer pay is close to £2 billion of the budget. The budget is only £3.1 billion at the moment.
Of course, you can construct a model that in 2020 still has that £2 billion in but you do not have any buildings
and you do not have any vehicles. You can reach ridiculous extremes. At some point you are going to have to
go into that number, and once you start that becomes quite quick. There are a number of ‘“ifs” and caveats to
all of this. The crucial one will be the phasing. If the CSR comes equal across the four years that is an easier
way to manage it than if it is frontloaded or if there is a deep trough in the middle, then it becomes really,
really challenging in terms of the ability to deliver it. It is linked to your first line of questioning. That
becomes all the more complex if you imagine the £800 million which we are talking about at the moment -
which just to remind people is at the low end of the Treasury modelling - and then you add £184 million that
makes that even steeper. You would then have to go to the officer line in larger numbers. That does not
mean the world comes to an end and London disappears. Clearly you can build a model around a much lower
number of police officers in London. There are then some much more difficult choices about what the Service
looks like and what we do.

Andrew Dismore AM: | am going to ask you about that in a minute. If we look at the range of 5,000 to
8,000 [cuts to police officers] that the Commissioner gave, is that taking into account the sort of things you
are talking about and the phasing of the cuts?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes. At the low end, if we
have a really good run and this all goes away, you might get down to 2,000, something like that. At the high
end if you talk about phasing it is not likely to happen immediately. As budgets move at these sorts of levels

Page 14



at the moment our projected budget gap to bridge for next year is £250 million. That is a challenge in terms of
the sum. If you look at some of the real successes we have had over the last four years in terms of taking costs
out, we have not yet had a year we have been able to do £250 million.

Andrew Dismore AM: If we are looking at cuts of the scale the Commissioner is talking about the impact on
Territorial Policing would be maybe 100 officers a borough or thereabouts.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): It certainly could be
considerable in terms of the impact. That assumes they come from Territorial Policing. The Commissioner
used the phrase, “There are no easy options when you get to some of these” and that is absolutely true.

Andrew Dismore AM: Does the Deputy Mayor concur with the Commissioner’s assessment?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): We would say we want
to press the MPS to do all of the internal things that we have set out in the Police and Crime Plan - reduce,
reform, release - and we are not letting up on that. We understand that the Commissioner is using police
numbers partly to illustrate the scale of the challenge and he has got a number of important audiences, not
just Londoners but also people within the organisation.

As Craig says, there is still all to play for on the funding, on the NICC and on the phasing. | completely agree
with what Craig says about phasing. The more that it is back-loaded the easier it will be to realise the benefits
of our investment in information technology (IT) and other things to make the police force more efficient.
Therefore that illustration of how many police officers worth of money you are losing may hopefully not result
in losing quite so many police officers. These are all projections based on figures that have not been firmed

up.

Andrew Dismore AM: So when the Mayor says the Commissioner is not right and the cuts will not be
anything like of the order the Commissioner has been talking about, what would you say to that, Craig?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): At the moment everybody
has got a range of views on what the cuts are going to be. | spend most of my working day talking to people
who seem to have the latest inside picture. | get different figures from every one of those. People will explore
and explain a range of options. What we have to do as policing professionals is talk about a model to the
projections we have been asked to model to. Until we know and see that black ink on the paper and someone
standing up in the House this is all “ifs” and ‘buts’.

Andrew Dismore AM: The projections that the Commissioner has come out with are ones you concur with
based on what you know now?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes.

Andrew Dismore AM: The options that are being talked about are taking longer to get to non-emergency
calls where life is not at risk, cuts to dedicated officers in schools, more police station closures, an end to 32
borough policing commands, potentially cuts to the Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs) and reduction
in senior ranks. Which of those ideas are the ones you would support?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): The reality is - as we talked
about last time - you probably have to do a mix of all of them. When | talk about £150 million to £200 million
still to come out of the organisation that is based on trying to reduce our back office costs where we have

Page 15



already made huge progress. | know some Members absolutely do not agree with it but we are the first Police
Service in the country to move jobs and services out of our force area and deliver them back to take some costs
out. It is not popular, | absolutely get that, but it saves some real money. If you look at some of the other
things we have done around releasing estate and where the transformations have gone it is absolutely the right
way to go. The £150 million to £200 million that | talk about involves more difficult choices like that. If you
can do those then you have to look at things around operational service delivery and different service
standards. When you look at the quantum of £800 million - plus potentially another £184 million - | would not
want to leave you with the impression that those options are a ‘pick and mix” list.

Andrew Dismore AM: The list | gave you is that the £200 million range or is that beyond?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): No, that is beyond
£200 million.

This is probably the most complex bit of modelling we have certainly ever been involved in as an organisation.
It is absolutely understandable that people double-count money so you need rigour and discipline behind it.
Some of the estate stuff will be in the £200 million.

Andrew Dismore AM: If we are talking about - in round terms - a £1 billion cut, when the Commissioner
talks of 5,000 to 8,000 officers that is on top of those things, is it?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): It would be on top of those.
If you get to £1 billion it is when and how you look at officer numbers. | have to put a caveat, all the things
we are talking about are based on the modelling and assumptions of how we deliver our service at the moment.
We know from the four years of experience that we have got of delivering major change that things four years
ago that people thought looked impossible we can now do. There will always be some movement in this. Any
of you would rightly say to us we ought to be able to drive somewhere between 2% and 5% efficiency a year
into the Service. It gets harder as you get thinner and thinner in terms of where you are around core budgets
but there is still money to drive out.

Andrew Dismore AM: The scale of cuts here is ten times that, isn't it?
Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes.

Andrew Dismore AM: The last issue | want to raise is looking at public order. The Commissioner has talked
about there being less flexibility in response to riots. Let us hope there are not going to be any but history
tells us that from time to time there are going to be large-scale public disorder issues. Are you concerned
about the impacts of these cuts on the flexibility to respond to those?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): As you get out to 2018/19
and 2019/20 and if you are at the high end of those projections then, yes, you have less flexibility. One of the
challenges - as you know - that consistently comes from London leaders is that image that appears every day
across London where vans in the backyards of Bromley, Croydon and wherever are filling with officers that
Londoners expect to see in their borough and they are coming up into central London for whatever the latest
issues or challenge is. What we have been able to do by having the numbers we have got at the moment is
that we can flex some of that. That will not be possible if you take these sorts of numbers out.

Page 16



Andrew Dismore AM: Certainly abstraction has been a big issue that | have been going on about. In
Camden we have been losing 100 officer shifts or so a week into central London abstraction. If you have got
100 fewer to start with that is a much bigger impact.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): There is a lot of talk about
officer numbers. People will get into, “There is a science”, or “There is not a science”. The reality is that for a
city of this size and scale that is growing fast - and when you look at the global comparators like New York
which is going the other way in terms of increasing officers out and available on the street - you do need a
flexibility for those things where you just need 1,000 officers. We can all say it should not happen like that.
The reality is that is how demand comes.

Andrew Dismore AM: One last point, a number of the boroughs have got ‘buy-one-get-one-free” type
arrangements. Will they be able to continue?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | do not know to that level of
micro detail. Clearly what we have done is look at every conceivable budget line. We have to look at all of
those sorts of offers. | am aware of many of the public debates around crowd-source funding officers and
those sorts of things. Yes, we have to look at all of those things. However, at the moment the size of the
challenge around preparing for the CSR is such that to some extent you are focused on the macro numbers.
There is a danger with a change programme of this size and scale that we get drawn into debates around,
sadly, the odd £1 million or £50,000 here and there. The reality is that is not going to fix a £900 million hole.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: A quick query for the Deputy Commissioner. You talked about the breakdown
and talked about £2 billion for police pay. Does that include police staff and PCSOs?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): No.
Jennette Arnold OBE AM: They then are funded from the remaining £1.1 billion?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes, | should have been
clearer about that. It is a good challenge. The £1.97 billion is police officers” pay. There is then a lump of
police staff and PCSO pay, estates, technology, vehicles and that all builds up to the £3.1 billion. At a very big
level we are looking at what flex we can do in all of those. We have reported here - and | believe it is covered
later in some of the reporting - the reductions we made around overtime and driving some of those costs out
will absolutely continue. We have talked quite openly about whether you could delay, take particular ranks out
and looked at whether you need every rank in a structure. That is done on the basis we have already moved on
the HMIC benchmarking. In 2010/11 we were one of those forces that in were at the wrong end of the scale,
certainly around Superintendents. | know many of you picked this up about the Chief Superintendents. We
are now at the other end of the scale. We have taken ten chief officer ranks out. More chief officer ranks will
disappear from the organisation. It is no one thing that will solve that so it looks quite complex as we build it

up.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: When the Mayor and the Commissioner make statements about warranted staff
being at the forefront and the priority that is the thing that gives many of us concern. You are going to look
for your cuts in that other pocket that is not, if you like, ring-fenced in the way that the police warranted pay
packet is.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | am sorry if | gave that
impression. It is not intended to say that that £1.9 billion is ring-fenced. It is to say that when you look at size

Page 17



and scale you reach a point, by any logical conclusion, where you have to go into that line if they are at that
high end. About £509 million is police staff pay and the PCSO pay at the moment is running at about

£70 million. Then you go into other issues around estates and fleet. That is how you build up the total of the
budget.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: That is fine, thank you.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Of the £70 million for PCSOs, is part of that reimbursed from Transport for
London (TfL)?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | would have to look at how
we account for it. | think we account for the TfL one on the income line.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): That is about £20 million odd?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes, there is about
£90 million in the TfL one that comes in. That, in pure accounting terms, is shown on our income line.

Len Duvall AM: | want to go back to the wider budget issue. One of the options we talked about was could
you increase Council Tax. In the Mayor’s budget guidance to you and other GLA services he indicates the
Chancellor and the Home Secretary’s — although | don’t think he mentions the Home Secretary but he implies
it - the Government’s position on spending cuts may jeopardise his manifesto commitments. Putting up the
Council Tax is just one option. There is another option and | would like to know whether MOPAC or the MPS
has asked for it. You could ask for the Mayor to consider you gaining access to the Olympic precept which
would come to an end, one of his proposals that would have been about his Council Tax. The Olympic precept
has no raising of Council Tax. It is a substantial amount of money that would allow you to develop and change
your service in terms of meeting some of the requirements from central Government. Have you made that
representation for that block of money? It can be used; it is not designated legally just to be used for the
Olympics and it can be used for GLA services. Do you not think that in the situation we find ourselves in, as
colleagues have said, both MOPAC and the MPS should at least be making representations to the Mayor for
consideration of that? He has opened that door himself by the advice he has given to you. | do not get the
feeling you have asked for that money or consideration of that money in the circumstances you face.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): At the moment we are
very focused on this conversation about funding. We would not want to open any other conversation within
this building until we were sure we had exhausted all attempts to win the conversation with the Home Office. |
do not think that would be appropriate or right. At the moment we are very, very focused on that
conversation with Government.

Len Duvall AM: You accept that there is that sum of money that could help or support you, in part or in full,
in terms of the potential financial situation you face in policing in the future, as it is the policing formula you
are dealing with now not in terms of just your current financial settlement?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): | would say you
probably have a greater understanding of exactly how that works than | do sitting here in front of you. |
understand the point you are making but there is also a wider point for the Mayor to consider in relation to all
of his mayoral priorities and how he wants to use that money. | do not think | can comment on that at this
meeting today.

Page 18



Len Duvall AM: But you are aware that it is possible? Thank you.

Kemi Badenoch AM: | have not heard very much about collaboration. That is something | am interested to
know more about and what scope there is for us to work for other police forces that are closer to outer
London. Have you had any conversations with forces in Essex, Hertfordshire, Kent and those sorts of areas to
see if they can take some of the load in those outer London areas off you?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): The challenge at the
moment is they are looking at a similar scenario with their CSR. It is in the public domain and people who
watch BBC London will have seen it. Our colleagues in Essex announced a 70% reduction in their PCSOs,
coming down to ten stations, policing in hubs and building a model that looks very similar to some of the
things we have all done. That is one of the challenges.

Where collaboration offers some real opportunities - | have spoken about the service deal we have done with
our human resources (HR), finance and procurement services which are now in a process of transition. Next
year they will be delivered back into London from South Wales. There are a number of forces that want to look
at the opportunities around that. Where we have tended to use our collaboration influence is much more in
trying to work with colleagues across the GLA group. There is - it is a very technical one - an integrator deal
around how we deliver services and maintain buildings. It has delivered some real savings for us. Our
colleagues in the Fire Service are joining that. We are leading a number of the national procurements. One of
the frustrations that has rightly been around policing for a number of years is why do we have 43 types of shirt
and those sorts of things. There is a National Uniform Managed Service contract that the MPS has led on
behalf of policing. There is a big fleet deal that we are doing at the moment. Those are the sorts of area we
see collaboration as working.

There is an interesting debate at both a practical and real level around Emergency Service co-operation in
London. We are talking with our colleagues in both the fire and ambulance services around what would one
‘blue light” control room look like and all those sorts of ideas where there is, importantly, both money - so
there is real efficiency - and real improvement in service for Londoners.

Kemi Badenoch AM: You would say that collaboration works better with other forces in terms of back office
functions and that frontline it tends to be more within the GLA group itself?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): It does. At the moment that
is the case. Candidly, there has also been a culture in the past where some of our colleagues probably look at
us as the MPS. If | turned up on the doorstep of a surrounding force and said, “I am here to help” they would
probably look at me a bit aghast. | think that will change. We do help and we are a net donor of what we call
mutual aid. One of the things we have as the MPS - with the exception of Specialist Protection where we
import mutual aid - is search and public order capabilities that our other colleagues do not have in numbers.
When the shout goes out for that we do provide that at the very practical level.

Kemi Badenoch AM: This is a question more for MOPAC, how are you making sure that the mutual aid we
are doing is not leaving us out of pocket?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): In terms of mutual aid
around operational policing in the first instance we have to very much leave that to our policing colleagues.
There is a real fine balance there, is there not? | do not think it would be right or appropriate for the MPS to
say to a surrounding force, “We cannot come and help you”. Last year with floods and things in outer London,
MPS officers were there with their boats and stuff helping colleagues. There is a formula and process by which

Page 19



we seek to recover the costs of that. Our job is to make sure that we do that. Equally, as the Deputy
Commissioner has said, there are times when we need assistance from other forces when things happen in
London for which we need support and assistance. Making sure that police of the country works well, in a
world in which we have got 43 forces, is one of those subliminal responsibilities.

| would add to what the Deputy Commissioner has said that we have just done a big outsourcing deal for a lot
of back office services which started this month. That is another form of collaboration. We are piggybacking
onto a Cabinet Office deal which has allowed us to get access much more speedily than if we had advertised
and gone through the Official Journal of the European Union process, and access to new processes and more
efficient ways of doing things that we were doing that were not frontline operations. What MOPAC brings to
this party - as it were - is to make sure that every avenue to do the things that are about the efficiency and
support of the force are done as efficiently as we can get them to be done and there is as much change as the
MPS can tolerate at one time.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): You raise a good point of
how do you ensure you get that. To give you some reassurance one of the reqular reports to Assurance Board
- a monthly board of our Management Board, which MOPAC colleagues sit on - is on mutual aid. Some
months there is very little mutual aid gone out or there is a pop concert in Thames Valley or something we
have been asked to support. It absolutely gives you that visibility to be able to see and check it is appropriate
and that - in the nicest way - it is staying within tolerances. One of the challenges that we will need to wrestle
with as professionals leading the Police Service for the future is that as the CSR changes happen across the
country they will happen - because of the way the funding formula works - in a very uneven way. There is a
danger that you and | are neighbours and | make a decision to cut my services on the basis | hope you are
going to keep yours. That is probably not a very strategic way to approach it.

Tony Arbour AM: Initially on that point you did say, Deputy Commissioner, that we are a net donor. Then
you went on to say that there are tolerances. Obviously there has to be give and take. Are you able to
quantify “net donor”? Are we net donating £5 million or £10 million?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Sorry, net donor in terms of
numbers. | would be guessing if | quoted them. In terms of the mutual aid in and out of the organisation,
State visits and the Olympics are real examples where the MPS takes in Specialist Protection Officers from
around the country. The more routine stuff is a complex search in in Essex or a G8 conference where we would
donate out. | will get you the exact figure.

Tony Arbour AM: | accept your assurance that that is the way to make things work and is the oil to keep the
machine going. You also talked in response to my colleague of these things in the GLA group. For the past 15
years we have been talking about and it still has not happened.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): It has.

Tony Arbour AM: | am not saying it is any lack of will on your part but there are people who like to fight
their own corner and it is our job to knock their heads together. | rephrase that, it is the Mayor’s job to knock
their heads together and successive Mayors have failed. | say that as an aside.

This is in relation to frontline services which relate to neighbouring authorities where we could be sharing the
burden. Let me give you a simple example. Kingston has a joint custody suite. The Kingston joint custody
suite may be 500 yards away from the Elmbridge border in Surrey. Have we thought of saying, “Why don’t you
fellows come in and share the costs?”

Page 20



Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Absolutely. One of the
pieces of work that is going on at the moment is around custody provision in London and to look at whether
there are different models of delivering it and some of those sorts of things. It is not just in south west
London, it features right around. If you go in most of the custody units in outer London boroughs it is not a
rare occurrence to see an officer from a surrounding force with a prisoner, in the same way as it is not a rare
occurrence to see a MPS officer at times taking a prisoner outside of the boundaries. Absolutely, you can do
that and you can shape a Service that is quite different around it.

Can | go back to your comments about collaboration? | absolutely understand the frustration of Members
from being promised, “It is coming, it is coming, please wait”. You highlight some of the reasons for it. Some
of the reasons why collaboration struggles are structural. The other reason is when you do the detail
underneath it there is not the money there there to justify doing all the work behind it. | would suggest as we
go - and it is probably a wider public policy point - we are going to start talking more about how you integrate
service delivery rather than collaborate.

Tony Arbour AM: More specifically - this again relates to what Len was saying - things that we do for central
Government where we are not doing particularly well.

| wonder if we can concentrate - | think this is the appropriate point - on the Assange’ case which was
enormously expensive. Our understanding is the Government has not paid for that and they expect the MPS
to pay. Probably none of us think it is reasonable that our ratepayers should be paying for this. Does the MPS
have a view on that?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | should point out that the
rules around what you can claim from the Home Office in terms of policing changed a number of years ago,
not long after the funeral of Baroness [Margaret] Thatcher [former Prime Minister]. Unless we expend 1% of
our budget we cannot go to the Home Office and claim money. For us that is a large sum of money.

Tony Arbour AM: It certainly is.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): That is the rule. We all now
know those rules. | can say they are not right but that is where it sits. | have to say - having worked in other
parts of the country - | could make a similar argument in other places around the 1%. However, until it trips

over that 1% they will not entertain looking at a special grant.

Tony Arbour AM: | have sat here from the beginning and | do not think | have ever heard that spelled out in
that way. What single thing has there been - outside of the Olympics - which has tripped the 1%?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Certainly in my time | cannot
think of anything.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): Nor can |, | am sorry.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | must be careful in
answering that. | can think of particular investigations such as - | think it is in the public domain — the

? Julian Assange is the Wikileaks founder who sought asylum in the Ecuadorian Embassy in London.

Page 21



Madeleine McCann investigation which comes with a separate stream of money. In terms of our bids back |
would have to check the records but nothing sticks in my mind as to having tripped the 1%.

Tony Arbour AM: | would have thought, Chair, that this is something we really ought to be having a go at. It
would be absolutely extraordinary for an event to break the 1% threshold for the MPS.

Again in relation to the Assange case, since it transpires we knew we were paying for it why did we take so
long to pull the plug?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): There are a number of things
around the decision in relation to Assange and the work around the Embassy. There was a range of pieces of
work ongoing with the Swedish and United Kingdom (UK) governments, and others, trying to bring this to a
resolution. At the point we looked and reviewed it and said the resolution - if there is one - in a practical sense
for the various countries involved is some considerable way off and we said, on balance, we should come away.
There were still, and have been, things going on. It is in the public domain, the Swedish prosecutor came over
to the UK. There have been a number of things that may have brought this to a conclusion.

Tony Arbour AM: To a layperson, like myself, in the 21st century one wonders why there were real
policemen outside the Embassy looking to see if he was going to come out. | would have thought there were
modern methods of surveillance which were a lot cheaper than real policeman. Is there any sense that we had
real policemen standing outside the Embassy as a kind of gesture to show that we were taking it seriously?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): No.
Tony Arbour AM: That really was the only way you could survey what was happening?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | have got to be really careful
here. | cannot talk about what we are now doing or might do.

Tony Arbour AM: Of course.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): The premise behind your
question needs a little bit of unpicking, if | may. These are diplomatic premises. It is actually extremely
difficult - | would suggest - under international law to do some of the things you infer or suggest in the way
you asked the question. That is probably as far as | could go.

Tony Arbour AM: All right.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Thank you. Before we leave this topic of finances we notice from the
MOPAC monthly report that you are now forecasting to overspend by £40 million in 2015/16. We are
wondering how you are intending to address this.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): To be fair, Chair, we
are quite early in the year and that represents something under 2% of the budget so it is not hugely different
from previous years. A lot of that is cash flow. We have not yet recovered some money. For example, you
referred to TfL paying for PCSOs and such like. We are reasonably confident that most of that - as is typical at
this time of the year - will come back into balance before we get to the end of the year.

Page 22



Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): A couple of things we have raised before. One is overtime due to work
providing specialist crime operations. The other is increased agency staff costs. We have had the explanation
that that is because of the change programme and having to get agencies to fill vacancies when you have to
lose staff. Is that still intended to come down?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes. We have talked a
number of times this morning about the signing of the deal in relation to services in finance, HR and
procurement. A number of the posts in there have been transferred across under the Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE). As we have discussed before we have not filled some
posts for obvious reasons in one of those programmes. | expect to see that one come down. The latest
quarter | looked at last night is showing us down to about £34 million already. Some of the controls we have
put in place have started to do that.

We are also starting to see some movement in the police use of resources (PURE) budget. As the age profile
of the organisation changes people leave on a more expensive rate. It is very hard to get the median right.
From the numbers we have looked at there is some movement coming in that budget. The legal provision
budget - which sits in supplies and services - has to be addressed as a budget pressure. There is more demand
on that budget. As we have running, potentially, concurrently two public inquiries there will be more cost
going into that particular budget. | am happy the Assistant Commissioners have stated to bring the overtime
ones back into line. Some of the things colleagues in Territorial Policing have done around trying to bring their
overtime back into line are truly impressive.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): OK. Thank you for that. Over the next few months of the budget process
our Budget Committee will be delving into that.

We are going to move now to another topical subject in the news today which is stop and search.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): To mop up the Assange stuff, | have been arguing for years that you
should not have police officers outside the Embassy so, of course, | am pleased about that. However, it does
not sound as if | would be happy about the covert surveillance either.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Just to be really sure, | am
not saying we are doing that.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): | want to ask this, are you going to be more careful about undertaking
such jobs from the Home Office in future and have you made that clear? If they start asking you to do things
that are going to accrue costs are you going to be clear that you cannot do it?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Taking it away from this
particular case and putting that to one side, absolutely the challenge going forward will be around those things
that are “different and special” and people being asked to do them. If there is not a funding stream and it is
not supported we will not always do those.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): Good.
On to stop and search, did you have a review over the summer? The Commissioner has made various

statements about the link between rising knife crime and the reduction in stop and search. Did you do a
review of that over the summer?

Page 23



Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): We looked at a number of
areas around stop and search. You will remember as a Committee you have looked in some detail at stop and
search and the work we have done over the last three or four years on this. We have looked particularly at the
issue around knife injuries and knife crime. We have discussed on a number of occasions how some of the
issues of what is going on with knife crime have been masked in these movements in recorded crime statistics
and the general background noise around violent crime. We have also done some work with the Gangs
Command about how often those people who are key targets and nominals on the gangs matrix are being
stopped and searched and looked at.

What we have done are some proposals around a refocusing of stop and search. This is not growing the
activity hugely. It is not going back to blanket stop and search, absolutely not. However, are we getting the
balance right in terms of those areas where there is a risk and the proportion we are doing around knife crime?
Since May the proportion of stop and search around knife crime — virtually of the same total for stop and
search, which has not moved much - but the proportion that is focused around knife crime has started to move
and grow.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): You feel you have got evidence for the fact that fewer stops means an
increase in knife crime? You have got evidence?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Having previously been the
national lead, there is not a great deal of empirical evidence around stop and search one way or the other.
That is in relation to pure academic research. Most of the academic and numerical stop regarding stop and
search is around legitimacy and a whole range of other issues. What we do have is information from both
Gangs Command and elsewhere that says there is a perception that some of the language and talk around stop
and search is whether it is having impact on people feeling more emboldened to carry knives. Could | give you
a piece of written research that says that? No, | could not.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): | am not disputing your perception based on 30 years of policing and so
on but the Home Secretary does not agree with you.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | have seen some of the
comments this morning. There is a danger with using statistics in the way they have done and it is a challenge,
particularly for officials in the Home Office. Quoting - as | think the press release does - two boroughs like
Hounslow and Lambeth without understanding the gangs context there is probably not the most helpful way
of doing it. However, | do understand why people do this. The Commissioner has probably been stronger than
anyone - certainly than any previous Commissioner - in terms of the messages around stop and search being
done inappropriately, done wrong or done to excess and the impact it has on communities. We are constantly
having that conversation with our officers and, where we can, with communities.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): Did you consult communities?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | do not think we did a
consultation per se. We relied on the feedback from particular areas.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): Coing back to the Home Secretary and her statements, apparently she

was wrong about the Durham Constabulary. They have got a long-serving black member of the police force
there so she could be wrong on this, | guess.

Page 24



However, statistics on stop and search in London suggest it is still very low for actually finding weapons
whereas it is pretty high for finding drugs. | wonder if this really is the answer to your problems. Is it 10% for
weapons and 60% for drugs?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): No. We have actually
decreased the proportion of drug searches we do. However, our arrest rate is still running at about 20% on
searches and also for positive outcomes which will include cannabis warnings. We have grown that proportion
around knife and weapon searches. If that is your 100% pot the three main areas that stop and search is used
in are that it gives you power around offensive weapons, power around drugs and power around stolen
property. There is more minor stuff at the edges but those are the three big pots. What we have said is we
want more of that 100% done targeting around weapons and targeting in those areas where we know we have
had a challenge. We have seen some of that over the summer where some people have tragically lost their
lives due to knife crime. Some of the things we are increasingly tweeting and putting out is where we are
recovering things which are like military bayonets or machetes. As part of the response to that stop and search
has a role to play.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): You intend to increase Section 60 stops?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): No, this is Section 1. Our
Section 60s still remain very low. There is a debate to have around Section 60. We are not there yet. You
remember the work we did around the Stop It Strategy which we led for the country, and has now been
adopted predominately as the Home Office practice, where we reduced by over 90% the use of Section 60.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): That is because you were overdoing it.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | agree. It does not detract
from the fact that we recognised that and did something about it.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): Exactly.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): About time too, about a decade late. Anyway, let me go back to
community disputes. You have acknowledged that too much stop and search increases community anxiety and
anger with the police. This is a time when you need the community more than ever when you have fewer
officers. There is less interaction between officers and the community anyway because there are fewer
officers, fewer PCSOs and so on. Is increasing the stops not going to be counter-productive?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): It is not increasing the
overall number. We have seen some fluctuations in the overall number. | do not think I could prove this
evidentially but can | have a try at taking you through it anecdotally. A lot of that angst is predominately
around minority communities and searching for drugs. There is much more community willingness to look at
how we deal with the challenge of knives in London. We do not have many policy levers. You could say we
could get much better intelligence on who is carrying knives and all of that. Absolutely, but that is not easy to
do, it is very hard to get and requires some very high end use of powers to do that. When you see some of the
things that we have all seen and where you can buy a knife of that length from one of these delivery services -
and if you pay enough money will be delivered to you, if you pay enough money, almost the same day in a
plain box - we have got something wrong.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): That has always been the problem though. There is an endless supply of
knives whereas there is a limited supply of guns and so on.

Page 25



How do you target people for weapons? What criteria is used that is different than for drugs, for example?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): It depends on a variety of
things. There might be intelligence about people who carry weapons for particular gangs and groups. It might
be as simple as people going through a knife arch and activating that.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): A knife arch is not the same as a stop and search, is it?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): No, but you have to use the
powers to stop and search afterwards. You cannot just say, “You pinged the knife arch, on your way”.

One of the challenges around stop and search - and | led on this nationally for many years - is that it is the first
time the police had a power to search on the streets. You can take stop and search away by all means if that is
what people genuinely say they want to do. What that does is you either have to arrest more people because it
is the same threshold or you accept that you cannot search people in a public place, even a tap down. It is
very hard to see how you would build a model that kept London safe and not have some use of that. Itis
absolutely right that is receiving the level of scrutiny it is receiving. It is absolute right that we are looking at
different and more imaginative ways to use it. | think we are as one in relation to the limited community
freedom around the use of that power.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): How are you going to involve communities in monitoring the more
targeted use of stop and search?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Part of the work is with the
Stop and Search Reference Groups and the Oversight Groups.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): They are a bit patchy.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): Not that patchy, if |
may just interject.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): Good.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): | checked before this
morning - and | know you are going to ask me the next question which | cannot answer - which is where do we
not have them. We have got them in 31 - the last time we counted - of the 32 boroughs. You are right to say
there is some variation in enthusiasm and participation. | am obliged to say - by my sponsors as it were - that
encouragement to people, particularly young people, to get engaged in that is really important. They are
doing a good job. We had a meeting for those Stop and Search Reference Groups here two or three weeks ago
actually. | met some very impressive young people who were getting engaged in that, coming to the meetings
here and making their views felt.

In addition to that, of course, there is all the data we publish on our dashboards. We did an intrusive tactics
MOPAC Challenge the other week. What that generates is quite a lot of data from the information we got
about stops, about the purpose of those stops and about the arrest rate from stops. That is all public. It is on
the dashboards. We encourage people to use it as part of their engagement through either Safer
Neighbourhood Boards (SNBs) or directly with the police.

Page 26



Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): It is good you publish that. It is not the same though as having groups
who actually do try to hold the police to account in individual boroughs. How often do those groups meet?
Have you done that sort of research on them? It is all very well having them if they do not actually do
anything.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): | believe they do meet.
| am sure it is variable by group so | do not have a comprehensive answer for you.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): | am sure constituency members will know a bit more about that.

Can | just move on to the issue of training? Every time we talk about stop and search somebody says, “It is all
to do with how it is done. If it is done politely then people do not object as much and there is not as much
damage” and all that sort of thing. You have now got an awful lot of new police officers. Are you going to
make sure that the training is as good as it should be?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): We have done one change
on the training already. Another one rolls out at the end of October which again - picking up your point - is
about the process of stop and search and also positioning it in that wider piece around community confidence.
What we have traditionally done - certainly if | look back at my own experience over many years - is trained
around legislation. You are absolutely right, it is wider than that. | do agree with the premise you suggest that
this is not as simple as being nice to people. That is not what we are talking about here. It is absolutely
fundamentally one of those things that drives people’s notions of us as a legitimate service in London.

There is also some evidence that part of that legitimacy is also about protecting people. There are
communities now talking about - particularly with some of the stuff we have seen in regard to knives - “What
are you doing?”

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): | went to see the training for stop and search and | was impressed. |
thought it was very good. Somehow that good training does not survive in motion in a borough quite often.
There is a culture of almost irritation amongst officers. That is what | have seen. | stop every time | see
anybody being stopped by the police. There does seem to be an impatience and an irritation amongst police
officers when they are doing these stops that does not foster good relations.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | have not personally seen
that irritation. | have heard it described. Also we have to remember this notion that people pop out of
Hendon [Police College] into something where everyone has got 20 years” experience and they, “Do not worry.
Forget everything you have learnt. This is how we do it.” | discussed this with a couple of Members
beforehand. If you look at the age profile now in some of the boroughs they are predominately young in-
service officers. It is people who have come through the new training and have come through many of the
new approaches and understanding. Whilst | accept the premise of what you are saying, | am not sure it is as
clear cut as that.

Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): OK. Thank you | was going to ask you about the role of SNBs in the
whole thing about holding to account. Do you have anything to say about that?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): Going back to what |
was saying about monitoring groups, we expect those to report into and have a relationship with the SNBs and
that to be a source of mutual integration and information exchange. That is what we would expect and that is
what is happening with the best of them. It is probably not happening uniformly across London yet.

Page 27



Jenny Jones AM (Deputy Chair): OK. Thank you.

Kemi Badenoch AM: Thank you. | was quite interested to hear that you were the lead on stop and search
previously. Does it worry you that stop and search has become so politicised that a policing tool is now seen as
something that should be avoided at all costs and as leading to a spike in violence?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | am not sure | agree with
every premise of the question. | should point out | am no longer the lead. Please do not read anything into
that. It is just the ability in a rather busy day job to give the space and time a subject so important needs.

A critique that could rightly be levelled at the Service around stop and search is in the past we have not
listened. When people have raised concerns in relation to stop and search we have all had this rather strange
debate around the numbers of which - and | can say from the personal experience of doing this - the stop and
search numbers are probably some of the most complex data sets we produce. There is still something called
the Section 95 data of the Criminal Justice Act that is published each year. If | paraphrase the debate when |
was first involved in this, if the number went down the Police Service said it was progress. If the number went
up our critics and observers said it was going wrong. Actually, to be able to understand what was driving that
data underneath was far more complex.

There is a risk around politicising the particular tactics. | do not think we are there yet and most officers would
look at it and say they know what they are doing and they know they approach in terms of where they go.
There is always a risk. The challenge, and where | think we should be framing the debate, is showing the
progress that the Service has made, showing where it has listened and recognition by the Service of where it
still needs to do more.

Kemi Badenoch AM: On a point that was raised earlier about knife arches and looking at a range of solutions
in conjunction with stop and search, are we considering putting these knife arches in transport interchanges
and areas which are well-known for having individuals.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): That is where they are used.

| am sure some Members have seen both us and colleagues from the British Transport Police using them at
major interchanges of transport and Underground stations. Absolutely, those are where they are used. Some
clubs now use them in a hand-based form. You might see a member of door staff with what looks like a wand.
Some of those are metal detector type devices. There is an increasing ability to use some of that technology to
help in this area.

Kemi Badenoch AM: | have only come to professional politics very recently. | have been a layman on this up
until recently. It somehow strikes me as if the police are having to do a lot of this with one arm tied behind
their back. On one level there is, “Do not use stop and search. Do not use these tactics.” On the other hand
when they do not do them there is criticism that numbers are going up. There are solutions such as engaging
with the community but the specifics of that are quite vague and it means different things to different people.
Is there actually something we are missing, that the police are trying to communicate that is being lost in all
the noise in terms of how you are trying to solve the problem and people are not getting it because they are
focused on their particular bees in their bonnets?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): It is a really helpful question.
The point that is probably being lost in the noise is how do we collectively get the balance right with
communities. If you live in a community in any part of the country that does not see the challenge around

Page 28



gangs and does not see the challenge of young people stabbing each other multiple times of an evening, you
probably have a very different view of what you want your Police Service to be doing. | suspect - and | know
from some of the conversations, although it is very difficult to extrapolate that to an evidence base - that if
you live in a community like that and if you are a mother, a parent or a family member who is worried that your
young person has not come home by 10.00pm, 11.00pm or 1.00am, whatever the timeframe is, you might
have a different view around how people are protected and looked after in that community.

Len Duvall AM: It is quite clear in my history that | am a supporter of stop and search if it is done properly
and appropriately. It is an important tool for policing. Sometimes we need to make that clear, whether it is
individually or collectively, but this is about a continuous debate and about getting the balance right.
However, it is only one tool. | am surprised it is being used today in the context it is being used today by the
Home Secretary. It is an important tool but only one tool.

| want to raise an issue | have raised with you and that | raised with Mayor in his MOPAC role as well as the
Commissioner of Police; Operation Omega. There were various things said. The Chair raised some questions
back on 9 July 2015 about the purpose of it. If stop and search is one important tool in terms of reducing
potential violence in our community then there are obviously a number of operations that can add to that.

Chair, when you asked the Commissioner what the purpose was of Operation Omega you said that you thought
it was to drive down the MOPAC 7 crimes. That is what you believed it to be. The Commissioner answered
you and said, “No”. Just to be helpful because you might want to follow this up, this appears in the transcript
on page 4 on 9 July 2015 Police and Crime Committee. On page 5 is an interaction between myself and the
Commissioner around, again, Omega and what the reasons are. | say to him, “Sorry, | am still no clearer about
what Operation Omega is and what the main purpose is. Is it about tackling all crimes?” Blah, blah, blah. We
then get a letter from the Commissioner about Operation Omega.

| was given assurances both by the Mayor and by the Commissioner that we were going to be focusing down
on the rates of stabbings and woundings that we have amongst our young people in London. | was given
assurances that Operation Omega would deal with some of that violence in our communities along with some
of the issues of stop and search. In fact, | think it was at that meeting where the Commissioner raised the issue
of stop and search. Recently the Chair has had a letter from the Commissioner - no doubt drafted for him -
that tells me, “Operation Omega is an MPS response to reduce the MOPAC 7 offences”. Of course, that is
limited in a sense. | mean no disrespect to the MOPAC 7 offences but they do not deal with the primary issue
about violence in young people and how you reduce it - which stop and search could be part of - in terms of
operations.

What is going on here? Why do | feel like | have been misled by both the Mayor and the Commissioner in
terms of Operation Omega? Why do | feel, that when we ask questions in good faith, should there be the
answers back that we are raising? | really would like some response from both of you about this.

| suppose there is some additional information we should ask, Chair, arising from this. In terms of violence,
what is the contribution that Operation Omega - which is still ongoing - has made, whether it is extra stop and
search, to reduce violence? What was the outcome?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Shall | begin? | do not have
that data for you. | will get you that data in terms of the detail. Absolutely Operation Omega would pick up
violent crime. As the Commissioner said, it is all crime. You have caught me unawares and | do not have that
letter so | will have a look at it for you in terms of the answer around it.

Page 29



You also have to look at this is the context of - as | think we have spoken before - Operation Teal which has
been the high-end work around the gangs. The Teal work - which has been both led at a borough level and
co-ordinated from the Gangs Command - has done the work around the high-end stabbings.

It also picks up on a point that you have raised a number of times here and which is part of the challenge of
some of the media reporting | have seen this morning - | hasten to add | have not seen anyone say it yet -
about the rise in violent crime being down to an increased compliance with national crime reporting standards.
Absolutely that is the case but - as you and the Committee have pointed out - there is also a subset of it that is
a real rise in London. That is around knife injuries. That is the work that both Omega and Teal will and do pick

up.

Len Duvall AM: Very quick follow-ups. Do you not think the mixed messages by those not accepting - and |
include the police in that as well as politicians - that subsection of the rise in violent crime are stopping us
getting to grips with it?

Secondly, in terms of Operations Teal and Omega, they are not knee-jerk reactions. They might be knee-jerk
reactions in the way MOPAC 7 crimes are being recorded, but they are not knee-jerk reactions in the sense
that | would see or expect to see a rise of stop and search that should deliver some results. There would not be
a correlation between the two?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): No. They are absolutely not
knee-jerk reactions.

Len Duvall AM: No. Sorry, | know that. That is what | was saying.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes. They are around a
focus. |think we had this conversation. In policing, we do have this habit of giving things operation names
and then putting the focus around them. We made huge progress with the gangs work when we first launched
the Gangs Command and we started to look at things like people under judicial control, which meant there was
some form of order or requirement from the court to control their behaviour. We thought we had to get more
sophisticated and we saw some of these rises around it.

| would agree with the point you make around crime statistics and the data hiding, not ‘hiding” in a negative
sense but limiting the ability to see below what is a rather large bucket of data.

Len Duvall AM: Chair, | think we need to follow up after this meeting with a further set of questions.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): You asked for a
MOPAC response to this. We have been tracking the violence with injury and the knife crime statistics with
particular concern for most of this year. In the spring we did a series of meetings led by the Deputy Mayor for
Policing and Crime [Stephen Greenhalgh] with boroughs where there had been a particular spike. We said,
“Some of this you can deal with through police operations but what else is going on? Are there issues around
licensing? Are there issues around other kinds of behaviour? Are there issues around where young people
travel, hotspots around transport after school and things like that, that cause friction and that prompt this?”
We had half a dozen of those meetings and they prompted some very positive multi-agency action asking, “Do
we have particular sites, particular hotspots or particular places where we can do things?” Some of those may
be shifting bus stops or other things, as well as policing operations. We plan to go back to those. We continue
to track the statistics - you see them and we see them - and we plan to go back to those. We are having
ongoing conversations with some of them.

Page 30



The other thing that sits with the violence with injury stuff is teasing out - not because it is less serious but
because you deal with it in a different way - the domestic violence from the other violence which is more
street-based and tending to be around young people. We are trying. | appreciate this is not wholly
uncontroversial. We are also trying, with Shield and other initiatives, to tackle the gang problem in different
ways and in a complementary way as well.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Thank you.

Tony Arbour AM: A very brief question. | want to revert back, please, to the Home Secretary’s statement
about the effect of stop and search. She is absolutely definitive. She says it is simply not true that there is a
link between stop and search and incidents involving knives. | really want to ask, have you provided the Home
Secretary with information that you have not provided us with that leads to that conclusion?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Other than the information
that is in the public domain, ie the stuff that is on our website, we have not been asked to provide any
additional information.

Tony Arbour AM: |see. You have been very circumspect in the matter because we have asked you about
this. Would it be a fair summation of your view of the link between stop and search and knife crime that there
could be a connection?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | hope | was fairly clear to
you that there is not a wealth and body of empirical evidence to support the range of views that sometimes
people express.

Tony Arbour AM: | see. It would not be wrong of us to say there could be a link?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): It is for you to make your
own conclusions on that.

Tony Arbour AM: All right. Of course, it is a serious point. The Home Secretary has not provided any
evidence but she says there is evidence and it clearly has not come from the MPS.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | have only seen a media line
before | came in. | genuinely do not know what has been said this morning. | feel somewhat disadvantaged to
comment on that. | will always give you a try at an answer but it would only be a try.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): From our point of
view, all | can say is we have not been asked specifically for evidence on that, that | am aware of. The Home
Secretary has the same access to the evidence on our website that you do.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): You have made a comment, Craig, that the bare figures do not tell us what
level of activity is going on in particular boroughs.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): No. The challenge in the
dynamic with London’s figures is the issue around gangs. | think that all of you who work in boroughs, who
have your locus in local areas, will know that. Unless you apply what is quite a complex matrix across this it is
difficult to make interpretations from just one set of data.

Page 31



Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Thank you.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: May | just say to Craig, eventually we are going to have to bottom this out, are
we not? It just causes more concerns around the whole operation of stop and search. For instance - and bear
with me if | get it wrong - if we look at individual boroughs and their ability to determine a local priority. |
understand that if they are going to determine a priority that then requires the use of stop and search it could
not be argued against, could it, because it is based on the intelligence of that borough?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): As a premise, your point is
absolutely right. If one of the tactics in response to a particular problem in an area is to consider the use of
stop and search then absolutely they could consider that. There is no central idea that, “You cannot do that”
or, “Please get on and do it”. It is absolutely part of the considerations around that. One of the things
Borough Commanders would consider - and | know you have a good relationship with your Borough
Commander - is the impact on the community and also just how successful it might be.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: What | am trying to get at is that it is not the case that they are going to sit and
think, “We are going out because the issue is knife crime or carrying knives”. They are going to be going out
and looking at what is relevant to that area, whether it is theft or whatever is happening, and then they are
going to then say, “Our strategy is stop and search”.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes.
Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Right.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): You are absolutely right. It
will depend on the individual tasking. You could quite conceivably have officers who are tasked in borough A
with the challenge - | will make it up - that there have been two stabbings, there have been two reports that
people are carrying knives, or, “This is the profile of the people we have been told are bringing knives onto a
scene where gang members meet or collide”. That would be entirely appropriate. You are absolutely right. In
many parts of London it will be completely different taskings.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: To get an understanding and not get confused about communities” responses to
stop and search, which is never to stop police activity. It is about ensuring fair, informed behaviour by their
police whom they regard. That regard jumps out of the window whenever they, in that community, are aware
that something is wrong and so it is right for them to then raise that concern.

The other thing that concerns me is that when we talk about stop and search is it the case that we are using
the total numbers? Some people can be just be stopped.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Stop and account, yes.
Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Stop and account. Then some people can quite rightly be searched.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: The other day | was on Kingsland High Street and this woman was shouting to

this policeman to say, “Stop him. He is a thief. He has my wallet.” It seems to me appropriate that the police
stop that person, because of that evidence, and search. In that instance that is a search, isn’t it?

Page 32



Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: The total figure in terms of stop and search, as you have said, is so complicated
you cannot get a sense of it until you go down to that borough level and see its application and whether that
application is appropriate. That is one of the problems we have, is it not, when the great and the good from
on high make these generalised statements. That statement does not have much meaning at your particular
level because you have known, because of the monitoring evidence, that stop and search was relevant in that
particular circumstance when you are sitting there looking at the evidence.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): No, you are right. Take
England and Wales wide statistics, those sorts of things - it is very difficult to draw conclusions at a macro level
around that. Your description of what is a police/community-member interaction is entirely right. From me
walking past you in the street and saying, “Good morning”, or whatever we say to each other, through to a
stop and account - which of course we still record and which is not the same as everywhere else in the country
so you have different figures already - through to the various ranges of search powers, from the things we
predominantly talk about in that area all the way through to Terrorism Act searches and some other very
infrequently used search powers.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Yes. There is one other thing | wanted to talk about. We have heard about
community advice, consultation and all that, and it seems to me we are in a better place because we do now -
through the monitoring group - get genuine conversations and consultations with residents. For me, that is
where it stops and starts. However, you still get input from advisers, do you not? | understand that
Duwayne Brooks OBE is still an adviser, is it to MOPAC?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): To MOPAC.
Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): To MOPAC, yes.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: The last time that Duwayne was in front of us, some time back, he was
supportive of the reforms in terms of the fact that it was going better and intelligence-led stop and search.
However, from my recollection he was clearly saying that you needed stop and search in order to deal with
issues like knife crime, like - at that point - gun crime and like drugs. Is that still the advice from

Duwayne Brooks to the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): | am not aware he has
changed his position. This is the conversation we have been having. It is complex in communities because you
need to search the right people in the right way in order to keep people safe. Clearly there is concern about
how you do that, where you do it and when you do it. However, there is no dispute that, done well, it can
contribute to policing.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Yes. Just a last point, Chair. Again, | asked Duwayne [Brooks] and | did get a
point where he actually had reference groups around the place. He was giving his time as a volunteer to go
around and sit in on reference groups. His advice had been sought and was well-received because of the
wealth of information and knowledge that he had built up. It is reasonable, in some instances, to go with the
advice from somebody like Duwayne on this complex issue.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): That is why he is an
adviser, he has experience and contacts and his advice is very much listened to.

Page 33



Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Thank you.

Andrew Dismore AM: It is a relatively small point. We know the relationship between the number of stop
and searches and the number of arrests that flow from that. One thing | have never been able to get to the
bottom of is the extent to which those arrests are related to the stop and search itself, rather than someone
being found with drugs or a knife or whatever. In other words, the extent to which the arrest is a result of a
reaction to the way the officer has approached the person who is being searched. There are no statistics kept
on that, are there?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): We have tried a number of
times to track that. Given the complexities of those individual interactions, it is quite difficult to track it to
that level of granularity. What we can do is show the stop and searches in the arrests around drugs, as a pure
number, and around weapons. Then it tends to get grouped into “Other”. No, | agree with you. One of the
challenges that has often been put to us is, when an individual interaction deteriorates and someone is
arrested for a public order offence or something like that is that a positive outcome of stop and search? Not in
the way we currently collect the figures.

Andrew Dismore AM: That is the point | am making. If somebody is arrested and they are arrested for a
public order offence then surely it ought to be possible to determine whether that was because there was a
punch-up in the street and the officers went to intervene, or whether it is because the officer approached it in
the wrong way and somebody reacted badly.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Absolutely you can do it, but
you have to go to the level of every individual record. That is one of the challenges. Much of the data we
report is collected at a system level so it comes out automatically.

Andrew Dismore AM: You record the number of knife arrests.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): We record the number of
knives.

Andrew Dismore AM: You record the number of drug arrests.
Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes.

Andrew Dismore AM: Why can you not record the number of arrests when it has been a reaction to the
officer?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): For a whole range of
reasons. You would have to go into every individual search record and every individual custody record. Let us
take a real, practical example. You stop me in the street because you suspect | am carrying a knife. You find
drugs and | am wanted on a warrant in another police force area. Is that a positive outcome?

Andrew Dismore AM: Yes.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): On some people’s reckoning
that is not because you have not captured the bit that was originally searched for.

Page 34



Andrew Dismore AM: That is not the point. That is a bit of a smokescreen. Suppose | stop you, | am rude
to you and you give me a shove. | say, “Do not do that”. You do it again and | arrest you for pushing me
simply because of the fact | have stopped you. That ought to be separately recorded.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): It is separate, but what we
cannot do at the moment is find that in the pots of data we have. We can say it is in the “Other” pot. Say you
stop me for something and you find | am wanted but | have nothing on me.

Len Duvall AM: Forget about the “wanted” bit.

Andrew Dismore AM: Forget all that. There is a perfectly innocent person who happens to be minding their
own business. For some reason the officer stops them. Let us assume it is on good grounds. Let us suppose
there is an operation going or something like that and they fit the profile but it just so happens they are
completely innocent of anything altogether. The officer stops them. They react badly to the fact that they
have been stopped because they have not done anything wrong. Then the officer arrests them because of the
way they react. Why can that not be separately recorded? There is nothing else in the incident.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): We record it as “Other” at
the moment. It is captured on the stop and search form.

Andrew Dismore AM: Why do you not have a separate box on the form for that then? Granulate, granulise,
or whatever the word is, the “Other” into, “I am arresting this person because of the way they have reacted to
me”.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): When we get better
technology | will be able to present it in all sorts of ways, cut it by different times of day and so on. It is really
important. | do not disagree with your point, | am just explaining to you the technical problem at the moment
with presenting that level of granularity.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): Is it helpful if | cut
across and intervene here? | am trying to be helpful. What we are saying is it is the “Other” box. It is
narrative in the “Other” box on a computer screen. In order for us to be able to find it and make some analysis
of it we would have to manually search the records because it does not do a keyword search at the moment. It
is caught but it is not accessible.

Andrew Dismore AM: | understand that, but how many boxes of options are there to tick?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | cannot remember. | will get
you a copy of the form.

Andrew Dismore AM: Why can there not be one more box?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): We are now into a level
of IT design that | do not think either Craig or | are competent to answer. | am sorry.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): We have had debates in the past about how long the form should be.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | just put the challenge back
as well, how important is that against the other choices you have to make around budget?

Page 35



Andrew Dismore AM: It would make stop and search a bit clearer.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): You would prioritise that
over your front counter, your PCSOs?

Andrew Dismore AM: No, it is not that. You have to tick a box.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Those are the choices, |
agree with you. However, it is a challenge.

Andrew Dismore AM: Let me make the point.
Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): The money is not there.

Andrew Dismore AM: It is trying to make the extent of stop and search more transparent and more
justifiable to the public.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | absolutely get that, but the
choice of doing that is going to be seen against the choice of all those other lists.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): We had notified you we were going to follow up on our online crime report
but, because of the time, | am going to write to you with some of those issues. We are going to move to
Caroline, who is going to lead us on our follow-up to custody healthcare arrangements.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): Thank you very much. We have had a lot of evidence
submitted to us recently about how inadequate these arrangements still are in the custody suites and how they
are putting the safety of detainees at risk. Some very serious concerns have been raised with us by healthcare
professionals. Craig, could you tell us how many custody suites are reqularly without cover from a healthcare
professional? Perhaps you could also advise me how many nurses are currently in post?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): By all means, yes. There are
no sites that are regularly without a healthcare professional. Fifteen of the 32 sites have an embedded nursing
service. | am just looking for the nurse numbers. We have 42 currently in post, on the April figure.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): OK. In April you are saying there were 42 nurses in post. You
are budgeted for 139 nurses and when we last had someone before us we were told at that point there were
49. The number of nurses you have is absolutely reducing.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): When you say there are no sites reqgularly without healthcare
cover what are you defining by that? Are you able to explain and also give us some of the background figures
around this, please?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Fifteen have the embedded
nursing service. The others will have their healthcare cover from the Forensic Medical Examiners (FMEs) and
the doctor service. That will be part of their healthcare provision around it. We have 15 that are covered by
the custody nurse practitioners (CNPs). Seventeen are covered by FMEs.

Page 36



Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): The evidence we have had - and we have seen correspondence
from FMEs to the MPS about this, to the manager - is that they have divided up the custody suites into areas
that they think are safe to manage. The example we were given was that someone was asked to cover one
area who was already covering another, and was told there was just no one else covering them. You are
looking at stretching these medical resources even further. Technically you might have cover but it may not be
the appropriate level of healthcare cover. Have you considered closing a custody suite if there is not the
appropriate level of healthcare cover?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | do not have that level of
detail in the brief. That would obviously be an assessment. Part of the reason of putting it under the Custody
Command is to try to be able to flex that cover. There is a challenge, as you well know from the work you did,
around both CNP provision and FME provision for us going forward, particularly with the work around
transferring commissioning next year. Some of those things will be playing into this.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): It is really worrying that you only have 42 nurses at the
moment. The FMEs are hugely stretched. We have been told by them that there is a huge lack of nurses so
proper triaging is not happening, and when they turn up they are given even more to do. They cannot even
get through the list of work to do, detainees to see and so on. Do you think there is a huge risk here to the
MPS in terms of how you are managing this area?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): There is always a risk with
detainees coming into a custody unit. We deal with some of the most vulnerable people in society coming
through the back doors of our custody unit. That is why the work around transferring commissioning to the
National Health Service (NHS) has to be the long-term answer. There is anecdotal evidence and you will have
heard it. If you look across the rest of the health service, our colleagues in the London Ambulance Service
have challenge getting paramedics. These are not unique challenges. This is how they manifest themselves for
us on a daily basis.

| hope that the work we are doing with the April transition - and that is not a straightforward piece of work -
will lead to a much more long-term solution. Some things, like nurse practitioners being able to have a career
structure, being able to do this for a period of time, continuing professional development and having the
opportunity to access other roles in the health service will start to address that.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): Is the management and safety of the custody suite still rated
amber on your risk register?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes, it is still rated amber on
our risk register.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): You have not thought about moving it to red given that there
are serious issues we have had raised?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): We have cover with health
practitioners. | know we would all like it to be better but we have cover. We are talking about a world where,
when many of us started, the FME service was the only thing we had. CNPs are a step forward. Many of us
will have managed large custody units where all you had was a roving, rural doctor. This is not an unusual
scenario. Yes, we would like it to be better but it is important we do not overplay the risks around it.

Page 37



Tragically, the health of detainees is something that, of course, we worry about. We have done a huge amount
of work over the years, looking at everything from life sign monitoring all the way through to how we do
constant monitoring of people and around making sure people stay safe in our custody. | am sadly a
pragmatist. Experience has taught me we deal with some of the most vulnerable people with multiple
complexities, and even in scenarios where we have had healthcare practitioners we have had things go wrong.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): OK. Do you keep a record of the complaints that come in
about the health service that is provided?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | think we do. | do not have
them here. Would it be helpful if | wrote to you?

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): Would it be possible to share that with us, to give us an
insight into that?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes, | would be happy to.
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): You are still intending to transfer the services next year?

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Can | just ask, is next year still definite? We have heard rumours that it
could be 2017 now.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): We are anticipating
1 April 2016, yes.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): 1 April 2016. Are there any issues, because of your financial
position, around that and around what level the commissioning will be at in terms of cover?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): Negotiations are
ongoing. At the moment, we are looking at a straight financial transfer to the NHS of what we have in our
budget for this service and they will provide service equivalent. There is a lot of negotiating about that.

| would also support the points Craig makes about nurses. A lot of the feedback we have had, given that is
difficult to retain experienced nurses in London anyway, and that it is particularly difficult to do so outside the
framework of the NHS. | have statistics here that tell me we have a few people in recruitment and we are
hoping that there is a positive incentive to people to join us and to stay with us in the new world, in which they
will be working for the NHS. We are at the moment in active negotiation about exactly what that means.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): When you say you are transferring, are you transferring what
the actual budget is, so for 139 nurses, or is it what you are spending at the moment when you are down to 42

nurses?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): We are transferring a
budget that is certainly a lot greater than 42 nurses.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): It is not necessarily the full 139?

Page 38



Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): No, because the 139
cover a range of other things, as well as directly nursing. It is not as much as that but it is considerably greater
than 42. | have a figure in my head of £12 million and something, nearly £13 million.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): We would be really interested to see that detail there,
particularly given the huge issues that have been raised with us. We are very concerned that basically you are
driving down costs and potentially the standard of care, and we are concerned that what is transferred is a fully
functioning budget and service.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): | understand that. |
share your concern. | would like to share that with you at a point when we have got a little further with our
negotiations, if | may.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): OK. When can we expect the findings from the pilot we saw
in West London around mental health liaison and diversion?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): We are very much at
the mercy of the NHS on this one. They are looking to do some reviewing about the end of the year or the
early part of next year, and when they release the findings to us we are happy to share them.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): You do not have a date?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): | am trying not to
mislead you by being over-optimistic. What they are telling us is that they will do their review around about
the turn of the year and they will let us have it when they have done their review. | do not know exactly what
that means.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): In reality it will be next summer because of purdah and
elections.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): Possibly. Hopefully
before then, but you may well be right with all those things coming up. | cannot 100% promise you.

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM (Deputy Chair): OK. We have other questions because we have had so much
representation around this issue. We will probably put those in writing if that is OK. Thank you.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Can | just go back to the MPS’s position on this, Craig? Is it that the service is
in-house currently? Did you not contract it out a while ago, or am | confused?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): We have some private
provision of FME services. This is a transfer of commissioning. It is a completely different approach in terms of
saying to the NHS, in my simple language, “Here is a sum of money. This is the service we would like. Please

provide it back to us.”

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: That then speaks to the question that Caroline has just raised. You are only
going to get a service based on the template that you put out.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes.

Page 39



Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Can we be assured that template - if | use the word “template” you will
understand what | mean - will be the best practice? That is a real concern, having spent some time recently at
a conference with the fabulous CNPs. One of the fears they have, coming from the MPS and other areas, was
that the service is now at such a low base that if it is commissioned on this basis there are going to be real, real
problems. Can we have your assurance, and MOPAC's assurance if need be, that the commissioning will be at
the level of service that is deemed appropriate to deliver quality care to those in custody? That is the main
question.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Yes. | can answer that
simply for you: yes.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Right.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): As Helen covered, there is no
intention to commission the service at the current level of CNP cover we have.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: That assurance will be nice and people will have heard that. The last time we
spoke about this we understood and acknowledged the issue about recruitment of staff. Helen, | understand
now that the overseas nurses’ restriction will be lifted shortly or has been lifted recently. Do you have any
information on this?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): That is a wider issue
about health service recruitment rather than specifically around CNPs and it is not one on which | am an
expert. | am in danger merely of saying what | have heard on the news. In terms of CNPs, | know that we are
succeeding in recruiting. We have some who have accepted posts and not yet started and others who are due
to be interviewed.

| am also conscious that in any service when you have a period of uncertainty - everyone knows that this is due
for transfer next spring - people are always reluctant to commit themselves until they know exactly what it
looks like. | am expecting it - whatever the overseas restrictions are or are not - to be quite tough to recruit
until we get that certainty and the contract signed, which hopefully will be early in the New Year. Then we can
tell the world what the future looks like. That makes a lot easier to say to people, “Come and join us. There is
a future here and it looks a bit like this.”

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: It is more than that, is it not? It is about the appropriate grade, it is about
working conditions and it is about time out to liaise with colleagues.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): It is all of those things.
Jennette Arnold OBE AM: It is the whole package. We have heard evidence in this Chamber from
practitioners whom say a lot of work is needed. | am seeking an assurance that it is not going to be just a
paper transfer --

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): No.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: -- but will be about appreciating the importance of this service. For instance,

Craig, can you tell us, of the 17 people who died in custody in 2014 to 2015, which is coming from the
Independent Police Complaints Commission’s (IPCC) report --

Page 40



Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): That is nationally, not
a London figure.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): Right.
Jennette Arnold OBE AM: Nationally. How many of that number relate to the MPS?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | think there was one. Was
there one?

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): | can remember one or
maybe two.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | think one was in 2013.
One.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: It just shows that this is a dangerous area and an area that requires priority.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): We completely
understand that. At the moment what we have are CNPs, who are individuals working on their own without
much professional support, surrounded by people whose professional background is different - police officers,
namely, and detention officers - who often feel their particular issues and needs for support are not
recognised. We hope that once we have done the transfer they will be in a line management structure that
comprises other health professionals, they will get external support, they will get somewhere to raise their
concerns, and they will be able to manage much better. | think most of those issues that you raise with us,
rightly so, will be dealt with by this as long as we get that transfer right.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: You are part of the specification. You are setting that specification?
Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): Absolutely.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: You will be specifying that there will be training time and there will be a grade
appropriate to the job? That is what we want you to say.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): | am only using the
words “I think” because we are in the middle of a negotiation, not because | think it will be any other way.
However, it is never wise to promise anything absolutely until it is signed on the dotted line.

Jennette Arnold OBE AM: OK. Thank you.

Andrew Dismore AM: | am just going to ask particularly about the position of young people in custody in
these circumstances. A lot of young people are kept in custody over the weekend when they ought to be in
the local authority’s care but there is nowhere to put them. To what extent are they particularly affected by
this problem?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | am not aware of any detail
of a subset. Could you give me a feel for what you would be looking for? Numbers?

Andrew Dismore AM: Yes.

Page 41



Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | can get you that detail. By
borough?

Andrew Dismore AM: Yes.

Kemi Badenoch AM: This is related to costs again. What scope is there for the NHS to potentially cover
elements of the funding in relation to custody and healthcare? Their budget is completely ring-fenced in the
CSR and their taking over some of this will reduce costs overall.

Helen Bailey (Chief Operating Officer, Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime): You share our
perspective and our optimism on this. When | talk to colleagues in the NHS with whom | am negotiating on
this they tell me their budget may be ring-fenced but it is totally inadequate to the demands placed upon it.
They are as unwilling to subsidise our costs on this as we might be to subsidise theirs which is why we are
looking at a budget transfer. All support would be gratefully received but that is the position they give us.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): | do think you raise a really
fundamental issue that is important going forward. If we look at total system cost there ought to be an ability
to make savings out of this, collectively, because - and | think you have heard the Commissioner say this
before - when you get to the gold standard there is better service in a custody unit, potentially, than there is
for someone trying to ring or get in to their GP. We cannot arrive at that scenario.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Thank you. | am just going to ask one further question. You may or may
not be able to answer it, Craig. We are about to go into a session with some community groups, think tanks
and faith organisations about the Prevent investigation we are doing, and, of course, we have had the Prime
Minister and Home Secretary talking about a crackdown on extremism in the past week. Sir Peter Fahy, the
Chief Constable of Greater Manchester, who speaks for the police on the Prevent strategy nationally, has said,

“There is a concern that efforts to control extremist narratives will limit free speech and backfire if we
don’t get the balance right. The efforts to control extremism and limit protest by those caught by too
wide a definition may undermine the very rights and British values you seek to protect.”

He talks about the police being wary about getting into this very grey area. | was wondering whether that was
something the MPS has come to a view on yet. Will you be making representations?

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): We have not come to a view
on that yet. Mark Rowley QPM [Assistant Commissioner, MPS] and the team in the Specialist Operations
world are looking at the work and the proposals. The general principle about policing stepping into those
spaces is always challenging. It is that notion of getting the balance right, about getting those things right.
We have spoken here before about the challenge of having what people call a strong counter-narrative that we
all use collectively against extremism and what that might look like. It is a difficult and challenging area. It is
an area we have to have a proper, grown-up conversation about because it is real and it is with us. However,
we have not come up with a firm view that says, “This is the position of the MPS on this, this and this”.

Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): OK. Perhaps we will return to that in further months.

Craig Mackey QPM (Deputy Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service): By all means.

Page 42



Joanne McCartney AM (Chair): Thank you. Can | thank you for your attendance today as well. It has been
very useful.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY

Agenda Item 4
LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Summary List of Actions

Report to: Police and Crime Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat

Date: 26 November 2015

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

Summary

This report sets out for noting actions arising from previous meetings of the Committee.

Recommendation

That the Committee notes the completed and outstanding actions arising from previous
meetings of the Committee, as listed in the report.

Meeting of 22 October 2015

Minute | Subject and action required Status Action by
item
5. Question and Answer Session with the

Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and

the Metropolitan Police Service

During the course of the discussion, the Deputy | In progress MPS

Commissioner, MPS, agreed to provide the
Committee with:

The MPS’s response to the Home Office’s
further consultation on police funding;

The net cost of providing mutual aid to
other police authorities;

The contribution Operation Omega has
made to reducing violence;

A copy of the Stop and Search arrest form;

A full record of the complaints in respect of
healthcare arrangements in custody suites;
and

A breakdown by borough of the number of

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 45




Minute
item

Subject and action required

Status

Action by

young people kept in custody suites during
a weekend because local authority care was
not available.

During the course of the discussion, noting that
negotiations were ongoing with the National
Health Service (NHS), the Chief Operating
Officer, MOPAC, stated that she would share
information about the commissioning
arrangements for custodial healthcare to the
NHS at an appropriate time.

In progress

MOPAC

Meeting of 24 September 2015

Minute
item

Subject and action required

Status

Action by

S.

Question and Answer Session with the
Mayor‘'s Office for Policing and Crime

(MOPAC) and the Metropolitan Police
Service (MPS).

During the discussion, the Deputy Mayor for
Policing and Crime undertook to:

. Find out and inform the Committee as to
why the Community Development
Foundation has been engaged to
support boroughs on implementing
Shield;

. Provide the Committee with the number
of Safer Neighbourhood Boards (SNBs)
that have bank accounts;

. Examine and report back to the
Committee on the issues raised
regarding: (a) the level of core funding
for SNBs; and the difficulties SNBs had
experienced in accessing available
funding; and

. Report back to the Committee about the
reasons for the collective enforcement
undertaken in Lambeth.

In progress

MOPAC

Continued ...

Page 46




Meeting of 10 September 2015

Minute | Subject and action required Status Action by
item
5. Gangs and Serious Youth Violence
During the discussion, Commander Ball, MPS, Regarding the MOPAC
undertook to provide the Committee with: Shield pilot and its
e The evaluation date for Shield. evaluajclon, the
Committee has
Following reports that Haringey and Lambeth been referred to
have pulled out of Shield, Commander Ball was MOPAC
also asked to provide details of concerns and
where that left Shield.
Meeting of 21 July 2015
Minute | Subject and action required Status Action by
item
5. Question and Answer Session with the
Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and
the Metropolitan Police Service
During the discussion, the Deputy Completed. MPS
Commissioner, MPS, undertook to provide the Letter attached at
Committee with: Appendix 1.
. The number of Metropolitan Police officers
who had visited Northern Ireland for water
cannon training and the number of officers
from the Northern Ireland Police Service
who had travelled to London and the
frequency of the visits;
. Confirmation, once it is known, as to
whether national guidance on Taser use
will be amended as a result of the Begley
case;
e Whether there were plans to publish the
minutes of the Taser Reference Group in
order to aid transparency;
e Which two London boroughs had increased
their number of Taser trained officers;
. Data illustrating whether the number of
emotionally vulnerable people affected by
Taser usage had risen in 2015; (The report will be
. The report on Operation Strong Tower proyldgd a5 500N ,
as finalised, date Continued ...

once it is published;

Page 47




Minute
item

Subject and action required

Status

Action by

*  The resources and costs arising from
Operation Omega;

*  How the 14 languages in the MPS’s
month-long recruitment pilot were chosen;
and

e The report of the MPS’s month long-

recruitment pilot to MOPAC, once
complete.

to be confirmed.)

Meeting of 9 July 2015

Minute
item

Subject and action required

Status

Action by

5.

Question and Answer Session with the
Mayor of London, Deputy Mayor for
Policing and Crime, Commissioner and
Deputy Commissioner of the Metropolitan
Police Service

During the discussion, the Commissioner of
Police of the Metropolis undertook to share the
MPS’s three-year financial plan with the
Assembly as soon as possible.

In progress.

MPS

Meeting of 25 June 2015

Minute
item

Subject and action required

Status

Action by

8.

Question and Answer Session with the
Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and
the Metropolitan Police Service - Part 2

During the discussion the Chief Operating
Officer, MOPAC, undertook to provide
information about the cost of procuring body
worn video cameras once the procurement
process had concluded.

In progress

MOPAC

Page 48




Meeting of 26 March 2015

Minute Subject and action required Status Action by
item
5. Question and Answer Session with the

Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and
the Metropolitan Police Service

During the discussion, Lord Carlile CBE QC In progress
agreed to share the work programme of the
London Policing Ethics Panel (LPEP), which
would be produced after the general election.

The LPEP now has its own website:
http://www.policingethicspanel.london/

Lord Carlile CBE QC

Complaints about the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime and the Deputy Mayor for Policing
and Crime (DMPCQC)

Minute
item

Subject and action required Status

Action by

Deadline, if
applicable

5.

Complaints about the Mayor's
Office for Policing and Crime and
the Deputy Mayor for Policing and
Crime (DMPCQ)

The Committee agreed, inter alia, to No disclosures to report
delegate to the Monitoring Officer all | for the period

of the powers and functions conferred | 3 November to

on it by the Elected Local Policing 17 November 2015.
Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct)
Regulations, with the exception of the
functions set out at Part 4 of the
Regulations which may not be
delegated; and guidance on the
handling of complaints which requires
the Monitoring Officer to report, on a
regular basis, the summary details
(such as can be reported in public), on
the exercise of any and all of these
functions to the Committee for
monitoring purposes.

Monitoring
Officer

n/a

Transparency Procedure

The Committee agreed Members No disclosures to report
disclose to the Executive Director of for the period
Secretariat or his nominated 3 November to

Executive
Director of
Secretariat

n/a

Page 49




Minute
item

Subject and action required

Status

Action by

Deadline, if
applicable

representative (within 28 days of the
contact) details of any significant
contact with the MPS and/or MOPAC
which they consider to be relevant to
the work of the Committee; and such
disclosures be reported to the next
meeting of the Committee.

17 November 2015.

Appendices to this report:

Appendix 1 — Letter from MPS re 21 July 2015 Police and Crime Committee meeting, dated
5 November 2015.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None

Contact Officer:
Telephone:

E-mail:

020 7983 6559

Joanna Brown and Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officers

joanna.brown@london.gov.uk; and teresa.young@london.gov.uk

Page 50




Appendix 1

iicdebilall TOTAL POLICING

5 November 2015

Craig Mackey QPM
Deputy Commissioner
New Scotland Yard

Joanne McCartney, AM, Chair of the s

Police and Crime Committee

London Assembly Tel: 020 7 230 2636

City Hall Email: craig.mackeyZ@met.poIice.uk
The Queen’s Walk www.met.police.uk

London, SE1 2AA

By e-mail

&ydeu'-k

Please see the responses below to your questions following the Police & Crime Committee
on 21 July 2015:

¢ The number of Metropolitan Police officers who have visited Northern Ireland for
water cannon training and the number of officers from the Northern Ireland Police
Service who have travelled to London and the frequency of the visits

A group of six officers attended Belfast for training on the PSNI Water Cannon, One Insp,
One Sgt, 4 x PCs for one week on May last year, and | am not aware of any PSNI officers
attending the MPS to see our Water Cannon.

¢ Confirmation, once it is known, as to whether national guidance on Taser use will
be amended as a result of the Begley case

DAC Basu has asked for a medical review of the information provided to the Begley case to
take place. The results of which won't be known until the medical body (probably SACMILL)
report back. The task of commissioning this work is well under way. If there are any lessons
to be learnt then of course, they will be looked at.

It is worthy of note that the police nationally and the IPCC have been working on 18
recommendations following two IPCC reports last year. These recommendations have
helped in the review of training and continue to shape the operational deployments in the
UK.

Page 51



piedthclall TOTAL POLICING

¢ Confirmation as to whether there are plans to publish the minutes of the Taser
Reference Group in order to aid transparency

Commander Dave Musker, our lead on Armed Policing, supports this action and will seek
the views of the Taser Reference Group membership, at the next meeting to ensure they
are content for their views and details being published.

¢ The two London boroughs which have increased their number of Taser trained
officers

The decision to vary the number of Taser trained officers deployed rests with the Borough
Commander based on assessment of the current threat and risk, including the change in
the CT threat to Severe.

The maximum any Borough could deploy on a shift is 10 as that is the number of Tasers on
each Borough.

Over the last four months from 30/03/15, the average deployment is four per Borough, per
shift.

Five Boroughs - Croydon, Hillingdon, Richmond, Kensington & Chelsea and Islington
decided not to deploy above the minimum four Taser officers per shift.

One Borough - Kingston - has only once deployed above the four per shift (5). Eight
Boroughs - Sutton, Wandsworth, Hounslow, Bexley, Bromley, Lewisham, Camden and
Barking & Dagenham - have gone above this deployment on a handful of occasions.

Eighteen Boroughs have regularly deployed above the four per shift; on average between
five and seven. They have also deployed on a number of occasions less than four per shift.

Westminster has increased their deployed most regularly, and has deployed all ten on six
occasions.

e Dataillustrating whether the number of emotionally vulnerable people affected by
Taser usage has risen in 2015

The statistics for Psychological data have been obtained from the front page of the 6624
reporting sheet "Was the subject displaying moderator effects”

For 2014 a figure of 796 was recorded out of a total deployment of 1944 and for 2015 it has
reached 463 out of 1120 deployments.

These are a subjective view as the officers not-medically trained and observations of the
subject where multiply deployments occur may differ.

Page 52



Skl M dthelall TOTAL POLICING

A previously report compiled by HQ Performance Risk and Performance Unit that was
submitted to Commander Musker and MOPAC under the heading Taser Usage & Firearms
Deployments 2014 had a page headed Taser Usage (Deployments) - 2014 EMD which
gave a figure of 847 out of a total of 1937 deployments. This implied that 44% of Taser
deployments were against individuals who Officers believe to be Emotionally or Mentally
Distressed. But this figure also included subjects who were under the influence of alcohol
and drugs and has therefore been distorted. The wording "Distressed" does not appear in
the report and should not be confused with EMD.

The total Deployments for the year was 1944, the difference is because Arched and OMPD
deployments were omitted from this report.

| would like to stress that this data is not incorrect, but has included other factors and |
believe has been misleading.

Using statistics collected from page 2 of the 6624 report which is headed Potential
Moderators to Taser Effectiveness which is only completed where a Taser is Fired or used
in Drive Stun/Angle Drive Stun Mode gives a more accurate reflection of the situation
involving mental health issues.

For 2014 a figure of 162 has been recorded out of 1944 deployments which equates to
8.33% and for 2015 up to 11/08/2015 117 out of 1120 deployments equating to 10.44%.

Since it is a requirement of the SOP that Taser reports should be submitted within 24 hours
sometimes information concerning a subject’'s Mental Health condition is not known and not
included in the report. Therefore the publication of such data can be inaccurate.

e The report on Operation Strong Tower once it is published

This action has been noted by AC Rowley. The report will be provided as soon as finalised,
date to be confirmed.

e The resources and costs arising from Operation Omega

The Operation started on Monday 25th May. An initial budget of £200,000 has been
assigned equally spread across the four London areas (£50,000 per area). This is closely
monitored by CATO who ensures it meets corporate needs and dovetails with existing
operations (Equinox / Teal etc). By 4th August 2015 there was a spend total of £114,383.

Activity is primarily delivered by borough officers in their own boroughs, with the support of
MSC and Pan-London units where appropriate. The aim is to support boroughs through
enhancing their existing tactics - whether that’s through developing bespoke plans or
occasionally flexing resources into crime hotspots at key times.

Each weekend a number of MSC are brigaded across Areas and posted to key night time
economy locations within each Area. These change on a weekly basis.

Page 53



J LSSl TOTAL POLICING

Some of the crime problems are shared by neighbouring Boroughs. Where this occurs a
single joined up approach using locally combined resources is being adopted. An example
is Islington, Camden and Hackney who are focusing on theft person offences.

These are listed in Appendix 2. These are the top wards for M7 Crimes over the last 12
months (May - May). This data is re run periodically to ensure tasking’s remain valid and up
to date.

e How the 14 languages in the MPS’s month-long recruitment pilot were chosen

The languages were chosen using a languages composite. The language composite is a
database devised using data from Experian. The data is from independent research by
Experian and is based on a wide range of data sources, that are either compliant with Data
Protection legislation, or are in the public domain. We use this data as it is the most up to
date information we have access to (census info is very old) and is accessible through our
contract we have in place due to the residency criteria checks they conduct for us. The
language composite we've designed breaks the data down by borough so that we can look
across and see which languages are most spoken on each and every borough. For this
pilot, we selected all the languages which had a higher than average presence in at least
one of our 32 London boroughs, and this gave us the 14 we are using.

The languages were chosen using a languages composite. The language composite is a
database devised using data from Experian. The data is from independent research by
Experian and is based on a wide range of data sources, that are either compliant with Data
Protection legislation, or are in the public domain. We use this data as it is the most up to
date information we have access to (census info is very old) and is accessible through our
contract we have in place due to the residency criteria checks they conduct for us. The
language composite we've designed breaks the data down by borough so that we can look
across and see which languages are most spoken on each and every borough. For this
pilot, we selected all the languages which had a higher than average presence in at least
one of our 32 London boroughs, and this gave us the 14 we are using.

e The report of the MPS’s month-long recruitment pilot to MOPAC, once it is
complete

The campaign is due to close on the 17th August after which an evaluation will take place

as candidates applications progress. An update can be provided at the end of September
2015.

o S c~-on iy

Craig Mackey
Deputy Commissioner

Page 54



Agenda Item 5

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDONASSEMBLY

Subject: Question and Answer Session with the
Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime and the
Metropolitan Police Service

Report to: Police and Crime Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 26 November 2015

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

Summary

This report serves as a background paper to the monthly question and answer session with the
Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) and the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS).

Recommendations

That the Committee notes, as background to the question and answer session with the
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service, the monthly
report from the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime, attached at Appendix 1.

That the Committee notes, as background to the question answer session with the Deputy
Mayor for Police and Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service, a summary table
(attached at Appendix 2) setting out the impact of the recommendations in the
Committee’s report, 7ightening the Net.

That the Committee notes the report and the answers given by the Deputy Mayor for
Policing and Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service to the questions asked by
Members.

Background

The Committee has agreed that it will hold monthly question and answer sessions with the head of
MOPAC and invite representation from the MPS.

MOPAC produces a monthly report providing an update on policing operational and financial
performance, as well as the activities and decisions of MOPAC. The report is used to inform
questions to MOPAC and the MPS at monthly question and answer sessions. The latest report is
attached at Appendix 1.

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 55




4.1

4.2

5.1

6.1

Issues for Consideration
The Committee will explore topical issues of importance to policing and crime in London.

The question and answer session with Stephen Greenhalgh, the Deputy Mayor for Policing and
Crime and Craig Mackey QPM, Deputy Commissioner, MPS, is likely to cover the following topics:

. Paris Terrorist Attacks;

. Progress against the Committee’s recommendations in its report, Tightening the net,
published on the GLA’s website here' (a summary table of the recommendations is attached
at Appendix 2); and

. Modern-day slavery.

Legal Implications

The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report.

List of appendices to this report:

Appendix 1 — MOPAC Monthly report
Appendix 2 — Summary of responses to the recommendations contained in the Committee’s report,
Tightening the net

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None.

Contact Officer: ~ Matt Bailey, Assistant Scrutiny Manager
Telephone: 0207983 4014

E-mail:

matt.bailey@london.gov.uk

! https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files /Tightening%20the%20net.pdf

Page 56




MOPAC

Monthly Report to the
Police and Crime Committee

Thursday, 26 November 2015
10am
City Hall

Stephen Greenhalgh
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime

Page 57

Appendix 1

MAYOR OF LONDON

OFFICE FOR POLICING AND CRIME



1. INTRODUCTION

This report is provided to the Police and Crime Committee (PCC) for its 26 November 2015
meeting to assist the Committee to exercise its function in scrutinising and supporting the
Mayor’s Office for Policing And Crime (MOPAC) and to hold it to account.

This report covers the period 10 October to 13 November 2015.

In addition to my range of reqular meetings and briefings with key stakeholders including senior
MPS officers, below are the main activities | have been involved in and or MOPAC has been
represented.

2. MOPAC ACTIVITY REPORT

2.1 Funding formula

* | have been engaged in intensive activity to put London’s case in relation to the reform of the
police funding formula, convening meetings, attending meetings and corresponding with the
Home Office. | raised the concerns held by MOPAC and the MPS about the lack of
transparency, coherence and clarity in the Home Office’s proposals and the consultation
process, along with the potentially serious impacts of it on police funding for London. | am
pleased that on 9 November, the Policing Minister apologised to the Commons and to all
forces for a significant statistical error in the formula which led to proposed funding
allocations being miscalculated and announced that as a result, the consultation process
would be delayed and the existing funding formula maintained for 2016/17. We will now
engage with the Home Office on future proposals.

* On 22 October, the Mayor alongside MOPAC representatives met with the Home Secretary
where the current review of the police funding formula and the upcoming Spending Review
was discussed.

2.2 London CONTEST Board

On 16 October, | chaired the second meeting of the newly formed London CONTEST Board. The
meeting was held within the London Councils offices and attended by a broad representation of
partners from Department for Education (DfE), National Health Service (NHS), Probation,
National Offender Management Service (NOMS) and Local Authority Chief Executives.

The key work of the board focussed upon PROTECT delivery in London and the introduction of a
new Counter Terrorism Local Profile.

2.3  Meetings

On 19 October, | met with Catherine West MP to discuss local policing matters. We discussed
a number of areas including officer numbers and visibility, deployment of resources and
abstractions and the relationships between the police and communities.

On 26 October, | met with Baljit Ubhey, Chief Crown Prosecutor for London. This was one of our
regular catch ups, to ensure continued strategic alignment and to discuss shared goals. We
discussed in particular the Domestic Violence pilot in the South London Justice Area aimed at
dealing with Domestic Violence cases ‘end to end” in order to improve the victim experience and
criminal justice outcomes in relation to prosecution, trial effectiveness, conviction rates and
reductions in delays.

24  MOPAC Challenge

On October 13, | chaired the quarterly MOPAC Challenge that looks at Met Performance.
The main focus was on burglary, robbery, theft of motor vehicles and theft from person. The
reduction in crime across London is at 18.7%;3@@'@92012 levels and the Commissioner was



optimistic about achieving the 20% target. The meeting concluded with an update on violence
with injury, knife crime and confidence levels in London boroughs.

On November 11, | chaired the monthly MOPAC Challenge which was dedicated to looking at
aspects of Intrusive Tactics and the work of the MPS in these areas. Duwayne Brooks, my Critical
Friend on Stop and Search, joined me on the panel. The Meeting received updates on Covert
Policing, Firearms and Taser. The dashboard was used to examine Stop and Search from various
vantage points, including the reasons for stops, the volume of stops, the number of arrests and
the borough picture. The meeting then moved on to police custody — a new area to come under
MOPAC Challenge scrutiny. That part of the presentation and subsequent discussion covered
topics such as: what happens in custody; the time between custody stages; demand; need; and
support for vulnerable individuals in custody.

2.5 Business Crime

On 12 October, | chaired the Business Crime Change Board, where Business Crime Reduction
Partnerships (BCRPs) were discussed amongst other topics. BCRPs are proving to be a great
success. There is demand across London and a flexible roll out is underway focussing on small
scale hot-spots working closely with businesses. MOPAC analysts are able to review the criminal
history of offenders by mapping business crime fraud in cooperation with the City of London
police (CoLP). This can provide insights in respect of repeat victims.

On 28 October, | met with the Chair of the Federation of Small Business” Policy Committee, which
represents 7000 small firms across London. A valuable discussion was held primarily concerning
better protection for small businesses from crime. The work of the London Digital Security
Centre was well received as was the development of business crime partnerships. The meeting
explored issues around CCTV.

2.6 Service Integration and Management

On Monday 2 November, | met with Atos IT Service UK Ltd. Following a competitive process,
they were awarded the contract for the provision of Service Integration And Management (SIAM)
as part of the Dynamic Purchasing (DP) Total Technology Programme Infrastructure (TTPi)
programme. The contract is for a maximum length of 7 years with a maximum value of £59.6m.
This contract is due to deliver annual cashable savings of £3.6m by 2019/20. | also discussed
with the provider the transition and implementation of the SIAM as part of the DP TTPi
programme.

They are London based and have a track record of SIAM services and provide an equivalent
service to the MoJ and TfL.

2.7  Youth offending
On 5 November, | met with London Youth to hear more about their network of community youth
clubs across London.

On 10 November | met with Amanda Sater, JP and Youth Justice Board member and Pam
Ullstein JP, to discuss youth offending and the critical role of sport in tackling and preventing
offending behaviour.

2.8 Fighting Burglary

On 13 October, the Mayor announced that 60,000 homes in London have now been equipped
with a pioneering new anti-burglary kit which was launched in March this year. The Met Trace kit
contains an invisible traceable liquid that allows people to mark their possessions with a unique
forensic code and warning stickers to deter burglars. The code is used by the police to trace the
items should they ever be stolen and to link suspects to crime scenes.

The MPS aims to provide 440,000 homes with the%f#()ae kits over three years, around one in seven
of London’s homes. This will help to furthe Rdfic urglary rates in London, which have already
3



dropped 26 per cent compared to 2012. It is estimated that the roll-out could prevent over 7,000
homes being burgled over three years, saving the MPS almost £5 million.

2.9 Supporting Victims of Sexual Abuse

On 14 October, | accompanied HRH Camilla, Duchess of Cornwall and the Home Secretary,
Theresa May to a visit to the South London Rape and Sexual Abuse Support Centre. The Duchess
of Cornwall has a keen interest in sexual violence support services in London and this was an
opportunity for her to see the work of the Rape Crisis Centres.

The Mayor has a commitment to address violence against women and girls and recently approved
the release of funds to continue the funding and current commissioning for the four separate
service providers of Rape Crisis Centres in London up to March 2017.

2.10 New Hate Crime App

On 16 October, the Mayor launched a new smartphone app to make it easier for Londoners to
report hate crime and access support services. The app was launched during National Hate Crime
Awareness week, with the aim of boosting confidence in reporting and encouraging victims of
hate crime to come forward.

With 14,631 hate crimes recorded in London last year, the Crime Survey for England and Wales
suggests that up to 52 per cent of hate crime goes unreported. However, the Mayor’s Hate Crime
Strategy, published in 2014, aims to make it easier to report hate crimes and there has already
been a 30 per cent increase in reporting in London in the last year.

The new app, which is free to download and available on both Apple and android platforms,
enables victims to immediately report an incident, with the information going directly to the
Police via a secure server. Users can also upload photographic and video material as part of their
report, providing the option to submit a verbal statement or footage of the incident.

The aim is to increase the chance of obtaining swift justice for victims and to ensure they receive
support to help them cope and recover from the effects of the incident.

2.11 Policing events
On 27 October, | attended the Police Bravery Awards to show my support for police officers who
have risked death and serious harm in the line of duty and to celebrate their bravery.

On 6 November, | attended the MPS Annual Service of Remembrance which was conducted by
Reverend Prebendary Jonathan Osborne, Senior Chaplain Metropolitan Police Service. At this
event | laid a wreath, and paid my respects to those officers who have fallen in the line of duty.

On 10 November, | attended the launch of the MPS” Christmas Tree Appeal. This appeal makes
sure that children currently being cared for by foster parents or live in residential care homes in
Westminster get Christmas gifts.

2.12 Hyde Park Estate Association AGM

On 13 October, | attended the Hyde Park Estate Association AGM. | gave a presentation,
followed by a question and answer session on the strategic work being undertaken to tackle
street prostitution and its impact on associated Anti-Social Behaviour and Quality of Life issues.

2.13 Cadet programme

On the 19 October, | met with representatives from the National Volunteer Police Cadets Scheme
to hear their plans on how they intended to expand the cadet programme.

Page 60



2.14 \Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) panel

On 15 October | co-chaired the London Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) Panel
meeting. At the meeting VAWG governance, prevention and housing needs were discussed, as
well as MOPAC’s Domestic and Sexual Violence dashboard.

2.15 Emergency Services Taskforce

On 9 November, | chaired a meeting of the Emergency Services Taskforce. The working group
established by the Taskforce reported back on their deliberations and outlined how blue light
collaboration could be driven forward in London with real benefits delivered for Londoners.
There was broad support for the proposals.

Page 61



3. PERFORMANCE
3.1 Data

Police data is now fully updated on the London datastore. In addition, more police and crime data
and information and interactive dashboards can be found at

http://www.london.gov.uk/priorities/policing-and-crime/data-info

An overview of key crime types as are below. Where performance is not going in the right
direction, | will be addressing this through the quarterly performance MOPAC Challenge.

Crime Tvpe Nov 2013 - Oct - Nov 2014 - Oct - Percentage
yp 2014 2015 Change
TNO 697,955 726,664

MOPAC Priority
Offences

Violence with Injury

Robbery 23,348 21,816
Burglary 78,301 71,050
Theft from the Person 32,056 34,436
Theft of motor vehicle 21,612 21,848

Theft from motor
vehicle

Vandalism (Criminal
Damage)
Rape Sanction
Detections

Rape SDs (absolute
number)
Other Crime

Property Portfolio

54,903 49,728

58,471 62,828

442,025 440,129

Personal Robbery 21,687 20,117
Residential Burglary 50,382 45,028
Domestic Abuse

“Violence with Injury’ 22,198 23,262
Offences

Knife Crime 9,547 9,998
Gun Crime 1,578 1,735

Page 62



SUMMARY REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING REPORT
Period 6 - 2015/16
CORPORATE OVERVIEW

The 2015/16 MOPAC budget was approved as part of the Mayor’s consolidated budget on 23
February 2015 and includes additional planned savings of £205.6m. This brings the total of
savings to £572m between 2013/14 and 2015/176.

SUMMARY

This report on the MOPAC/MPS finances for 2015/16 provides details of the forecast outturn
financial position as at Period 6 for revenue and capital budgets. The revenue forecast shows an
overspend of £27.2m, a reduction in the forecast overspend of £12.4m.

The forecast spend on the Capital Programme as at Period 6 is £265.1m compared to the
approved budget of £264.6m.

The major pressures and mitigations on this year’s budget are:

. Predominant explanation of variance
Pressures: £m

17.4 | Delay in filling funded posts, reduced
Income and Specific Grants sporting income and lower than anticipated
funding from the Innovation Fund.

14.8 | Higher than expected legal costs in relation
Supplies and Services to 3rd party provisions, and Digital Policing
costs.

Mitigations:

(3.3) | Lower average constable costs due to
Police, PCSO and Staff Pay recruitment and PCSO staff below planned
strength.

Revenue Financial Position — Period 6

The annual forecast as at Period 6 is for a net overspend of £27.2m which is 1.2% of the Total Net
Expenditure budget as detailed below.

Page 63



MOPAC report to Police and Crime Committee — 26 November 2015

Table 1 - Subjective comparison of year to date and forecast annual expenditure and income
to budget - Period 6

Total Total Total
Yearto | Yearto Year to Cost category Revised Total Total
Date Date Date Annual Annual Annual Annual
Budget | Actuals | Variance Budget Forecast | Variance | Variance
£m £m £m £m £m £m %
881.8 878.9 -2.8 | Police Officer Pay 1,775.7 1,765.4 -10.3 -0.6%
253.6 256.1 2.6 | Police Staff Pay 490.7 489.5 -1.1 -0.2%
34.2 33.9 -0.4 | PCSO Pay 68.6 65.8 -2.8 -4.1%
1,169.6 | 1,168.9 -0.6 | Total Pay 2,335.0 2,320.7 -14.3 -0.6%
41.3 48.1 6.8 | Police Officer Overtime 82.8 93.2 10.4 12.6%
11.7 11.8 0.1 | Police Staff Overtime 23.3 23.9 0.6 2.6%
0.2 0.1 -0.0 | PCSO Overtime 0.3 0.2 -0.1 -21.2%
53.1 60.0 6.9 | Total Overtime 106.4 1174 11.0 10.3%
1,222.6 | 1,228.9 6.3 | Total Pay & Overtime 2,441.5 2,438.1 -3.3 -0.1%
10.5 14.6 4.2 | Employee Related Expenditure 20.0 20.5 0.5 2.3%
879 94.0 6.1 | Premises Costs 170.8 172.6 1.8 1.0%
30.1 25.7 -4.3 | Transport Costs 60.4 57.4 -3.1 -5.1%
200.6 188.8 -11.8 | Supplies & Services 428.2 443.0 14.8 3.5%
329.0 323.2 -5.8 | Total Running Expenses 679.4 693.4 14.0 2.1%
25.3 23.1 -2.2 | Capital Financing Costs 50.6 50.6 -0.0 0.0%
17.9 17.0 -0.9 | Discretionary Pension Costs 35.9 34.0 -1.9 -5.3%
1,594.9 | 1,592.2 -2.7 | Total Gross Expenditure 3,207.4 3,216.1 8.7 0.3%
-137.9 -127.1 10.8 | Other Income -280.5 -265.8 14.8 -5.3%
-245.1 -248.6 -3.5 | Specific Grants -495.7 -493.0 2.6 -0.5%
-4.1 -2.4 1.6 | Transfers to/(from)Reserves -70.5 -69.4 1.0 -1.5%
1,207.8 | 1,214.1 6.3 | Total Net Expenditure 2,360.7 2,387.9 27.2 1.2%
Funding (General Grant &
-1,180.3 | -1,180.3 0.0 | Precept) -2,360.7 | -2,360.7 0.0 0.0%
Overall MPS & MOPAC
27.4 33.8 6.3 | Total -0.0 27.2 27.2

Period 6 Commentary - Summary of Key Issues

Income & Specific Grant

There are forecast pressures of £14.8m which principally relate to unsold posts, reduced sporting
income and lower than anticipated funding from the Innovation Fund due to reduced spending on
mobility. There has been a favourable movement of £5.2m since Period 3 which is due to the filling of
previously vacant police officer and PCSO posts (£5m) and an increase in expected income from vetting
and registration of overseas visitors (£1m). There is a forecast under recovery of specific grant (£2.6m)
that principally relates to a forecast under-recovery of Counter Terrorism grant within Specialist Crime
& Operations due to firearms posts being vacant

Protective Security Grant and CT Policing Grants expenditure are forecasting to over spend this year. If
this is the final position at year-end the MPS will be at risk of having to fund Counter

Terrorism/Protective Security (CT/PS) activity from reserves.

Page 64




MOPAC report to Police and Crime Committee — 26 November 2015

Supplies and Services

There is a forecast outturn pressure of £14.8m. Around half of this pressure relates to a £7m top up
estimated to be required for the third party provision in addition to the budget of £14.7m. This is
recognised as an ongoing pressure and is reflected in the base budget for future years. The other
significant area of overspend is within Digital Policing, £5.1m, where there are a number of pressures
offset in part by a number of underspends.

Police officer pay

Police officer pay is now forecast to underspend by £10.2m, due to the reduced average costs of
Constables. As new recruits join the organisation, most do not start at the top of the pay band.

Police Staff Pay

The forecast for police staff pay is a underspend of £1.1m which is a favourable movement of £9m
from the forecast reported in Period 5. The reduction to the overspend is mainly in Specialist Crime
and Operations Met Command and Control where attrition levels are now forecast to be higher than
previously anticipated. There is also a reduction in the forecast for temporary staff expenditure of
£1.8m which is mainly in Digital Policing and HR People & Change.

The 2015/16 pay award is currently being negotiated with the Trade Unions. The MPS’ offer will
involve an additional unbudgeted cost of £1.5m in 2015/16 with savings in future years (as the pay
awards proposed for 2015/16 and 2016/17 are non-consolidated). The unbudgeted cost in 2015/16
will be funded from the budget pressures reserve. The reserve will be replenished in 2016/17 when the
savings are made.

Overtime

Against current budgets there is an overall pressure of £11m, mainly on Police Officers (£10.4m). The
pressure on Police Officer overtime has increased by £2m from that reported at Period 3 mainly within
Territorial Policing (TP). The most significant overspend (£5.9m) is within Specialist Operations (SO)
due to operational pressures, high level of vacancies and the threat level being increased to severe from
August 2014. The majority of this overspend is funded by Protective Security and Counter Terrorism
grants.

Other pressures include in SC&O for Specialist Firearms (£0.7m) and Public Order Resourcing (£2.6m).
Measures are being put in place to address these pressures.

Capital
The table below sets out the forecast spend of £265.1m, which is £0.5m above the approved budget.
Gross capital receipts as at the end of September 2015 are £94m, and the forecast remains £196m.

Capital Expenditure as at Period 6 2015/16

Variance
Programme el i Approved
Summary by Provisioning Dept 2015/16 Actuals to Programme/ Spend Rate
31/03/16
Forecast
0, 0,

N £000s £000s £000s % of forecast | % of budget
Comprising spent spent
Digital Policing 140,108 27,861 112,200 (27,908) 25% 20%
Property Services 187,100 63,934 150,298 (36,802) 43% 34%
Fleet Services 25,500 6,123 20,347 (5,153) 30% 24%
Other Plant & Equipment 60 0 60| 0
Over Programming (88,192) 0l (17,809) 70,383
Budget 264,576 97,918 265,096 520 37% 37%

Page 65



MOPAC report to Police and Crime Committee — 26 November 2015

5. CORRESPONDENCE AND MAYOR'’S QUESTIONS

MOPAC continues to manage and prioritise all correspondence and Mayor’s questions received,
to ensure that it is meeting its obligation to respond to a high quality and in a timely manner.

5.1 Mayor’s Questions (MQs)

Mayor’s questions | Total received | Responded to In percentage
within agreed terms
timeframe

April 2015 No MQs

May 2015 92 83 90%

June 2015 83 76 92%

July 2015 112 90 80%

August 2015 No MQs

September 2015 178 151 85%

October 2015 58 78 79%

In the month of October, MOPAC received a number of MQs that required detailed input from
the MPS, which led to delays in the responses.

120%
100% 97%
80%
60%
40%
—4—2014/5
20%
/ ——2015/6
0% GOO T T T T 1
May Jun Jul Sept Oct

Comparative data year on year MQs responded to.

5.2  Correspondence received and responded to within 20 days

MOPAC continues to receive a high volume of correspondence. We however strive to respond to
90% of all correspondence received within 20 working days.

Months Correspondence | Number responded to | In percentage
received within 20 working days | terms

April 2015 197 190 96%

May 2015 185 162 88%

June 2015 261 247 95%

July 2015 226 216 96%

Page 66



MOPAC report to Police and Crime Committee — 26 November 2015

Months Correspondence | Number responded to | In  percentage
received within 20 working days | terms
August 2015 160 146 91%
September 2015 | 162 160 99%
Oct 2015 262 255 97%
100%
96%
95% _

90%

91%

85%

A4

88%

91%

b7

80%

75%

=—2014/5
——2015/6

April

May Jun

Jul Aug Sept

Oct

Comparative data year on year of correspondence responded to.

Page 67




MOPAC report to Police and Crime Committee — 26 November 2015

6. MOPAC BUSINESS AND MEETINGS
In the last month, my office and | have had a range of meetings with key stakeholders, MPS officers,
and in support of the Mayor.

6.1 Regular meetings
* Meetings with the Mayor
» Bilateral with the Commissioner
* Meetings with MPS Management Board team members
* Meetings with MOPAC Senior Officers and Advisers
* Liaison meetings with Police and Crime Committee members.

* Meetings on Met Change and the Budget with the Deputy Commissioner
and MPS Management Board

* Regular contact with the Home Office
* Regular contact with Crown Prosecution Service

There are also frequent informal conversations with senior colleagues. All meetings are covered in
section 2 and 6.1.

6.2 Decisions
The following formal decisions have been made:

Decision Number Formal Decisions made

DMPCD 2015 95 RDA Settlement

DMPCD 2015 99 Warehousing at Belvedere

DMPCD 2015110 Request for Financial Assistance

DMPCD 2015 120 Metropolitan Police Crime Museum

DMPCD 2015 121 Period 5 Budget Monitoring

DMPCD 2015 126 Major Trauma Centre Youth Domestic Violence Service Grant
Award

6.3  Future MOPAC meetings are as below

Date MOPAC Meeting

9 December 2015 MOPAC Challenge - Victims

11 December 2015 MOPAC/MPS Audit Panel

11 January 2016 MOPAC Challenge — Performance
12 February 2016 MOPAC Challenge — Gangs

18 March 2016 MOPAC/MPS Audit Panel

| regularly meet with my advisory panels including the Joint Investment Board (JIB) and Joint Asset
Management Panel (JAMP).

In addition, the London Policing Ethics Panel will have their next meeting on 1 December 2015.

Page 68



Appendix 2

LONDONASSEMBLY

Police and Crime Committee Online crime: impact tracker

The Committee carried out a review of the Met’s approach to tackling online theft and fraud in 2014. A working group, chaired by Roger Evans AM, carried
out the investigation on the Committee’s behalf and the Committee published its report in March 2015.

The table below provides a summary of the impact of each of the recommendations and the extent to which they have been accepted by MOPAC and the
Met using RAG (red, amber or green) status. RAG status provides a performance judgment: in this instance, red means the recommendation has not been

accepted; amber means there has been some progress against the recommendation; and green means the recommendation has been implemented or
substantively accepted.

69 abed

Committee’s recommendation

Response

Progress

Recommendation 1:

In the next year, MOPAC should
commission criminologists and/or
other academics to work with the Met
to develop profiles of the different
types of perpetrators of online crime
that are based in London, in order to
help the Met to tailor its response. The
research should focus on low-level,
high-volume online crimes; it should
also pay particular attention to the
extent to which perpetrators are
currently involved in other forms of
offending, or have been in the past.

MOPAC says it is working with Operation Falcon from a crime

prevention and target hardening viewpoint.

MOPAC will work with the Operation Falcon team seconded
to the London Digital Security Centre (LDSC) to assess
whether there are particular archetypes of online offenders
as seen through those prosecuted. There are currently eight
Met Cyber Protect officers seconded into the LDSC team.

The LDSC will work with MOPAC's Evidence and Insight team
of social researchers to assess whether there are any trends
in offending patterns, for example using Police national
computer data.

This recommendation has been substantially
accepted: MOPAC will take steps to get a
better understanding of the profiles of
offenders based in London.

Recommendation 2:

The Office for National Statistics
should introduce specific questions
into the Crime Survey for England and
Wales to measure online victimisation.

The Minister for Crime Prevention, in her response to the
Committee’s report, stated that she agreed there is more to
do to ensure that crime statistics properly capture online
crime.

John Flatley, Head of Crime Statistics and Analysis at the

There is some progress against this
recommendation: both the Minister and the
ONS accepted that we to ensure online
crimes are capture in the statistics.

It is yet to be seen, however, whether the




ACCEFMRI Y
LONDONASSEMBLY

Police and Crime Committee

Online crime: impact tracker

Committee’s recommendation

Response

Progress

It should include these offences in the
Crime Survey’s headline results from
2016-17 onwards.

Office for National Statistics, also responded to the
Committee’s report. He said that the ONS has established a
project to explore the feasibility of covering fraud and cyber-
crime in the main Crime Survey in the future.

Crime Survey’s headline results will include
online crimes such as cyber-fraud in the
future.

Recommendation 3:

The Mayor’s Office for Policing and
Crime should develop specific
guestions to capture individuals’
online victimisation in London, with a
view to introducing them into its
qguarterly Public Attitudes Surveys
from 2016-17 onwards. In addition,
MOPAC should extend its Business
Attitudes Survey to measure online
victimisation among London’s
businesses. It should publish the
headline results from each survey on
the London Datastore.

0/ abed

MOPAC says its analysts are assessing whether the new
MyVoice survey of victims can include members of the public,
and not just businesses.

The Business Attitude Survey (BAS) asks businesses about
online victimisation. It is in its second wave of interviews.
MOPAC will publish its BAS results on the Business crime

page of the MOPAC website.

The PAS now includes questions about online
crime/victimisation.

This recommendation has been accepted.

Recommendation 4:

The Mayor, in partnership with the
City of London Police and other key
stakeholders, should lead a London-
wide campaign during 2015-16 to draw
attention to the threat of online crime
and raise awareness of Action Fraud to
improve reporting of crime by

MOPAC says it is working through the LDSC with a number of
partners on a series of masterclass briefings for businesses
on cyber-crime and fraud.

The first was held on 26 May in City Hall, opened by the
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime and London Chairman
of the Federation of Small Businesses, with talks from Sophos
and City of London Police, who are promoting Action Fraud
and the law enforcement response to fraud in these

There is some progress against this
recommendation: MOPAC is attempting to
raise awareness about Action Fraud among
businesses.

However, MOPAC's response did not explain
what it is doing to raise awareness among
the public. And it not comment on whether it
would use the Mayor to raise the profile of




LONDONASSEMBLY

Police and Crime Committee Online crime: impact tracker

individuals and businesses. presentations through the LDSC.

The LDSC is also actively engaged with Barclays and the Royal
Bank of Scotland and presenting at their events for SMEs, and
are promoting Action Fraud there too.

Recommendation 5: MOPAC says it will take the activity of the LDSC to SNBs after
MOPAC should help Safer its initial tranche of roadshows are complete later in 2015.
Neighbourhood Boards (SNBs) to raise | LDSC will work on a programme of engagement on digital
awareness about online crime and the | issues through the SNBs.
role of Action Fraud. It should provide
SNBs with borough-level fraud and
online crime statistics to help them to
identify vulnerable groups in their area.
To begin with, MOPAC should pilot
events at meetings for two Safer
Neighbourhood Boards. It should then
collect findings from these meetings
and feed these back to all other boards
across London by the end of 2015-16.

T/ abed

Recommendation 6: MOPAC says it is already considering how the digital

To help the Met to avoid viewing environment can enable stalking and harrassment. These
cyber-crime in isolation, MOPAC risks have been written into the Hate Crime Strategy.

should commit that its future MOPAC ensures that all its strategies cover the online nature
strategies across all themes will of crime and abuse.

directly address pertinent internet

risks.

Recommendation 7: The Commissioner, in his formal response to the report, said




ACCEFMRI Y
LONDONASSEMBLY

Police and Crime Committee

Online crime: impact tracker

Committee’s recommendation

Response

Progress

Before the Met expands the FALCON
command to phase three, it should
assess whether it would be more
beneficial to operate with a higher
proportion of expert civilian staff
relative to warranted officers.

that FALCON has embarked on a Police Staff Investigator
programme to explore the Met’s ability to recruit and retain
non-warranted staff, enabling them to work alongside
detectives to combat cyber-crime. Currently nine staff
members are undertaking the programme.

accepted: the Met recognises that civilian
staff, as well as, police officers will be an
important resource to help tackle online
theft and fraud.

Recommendation 8:

MOPAC should develop and publish an
online crime performance dashboard
on a quarterly basis from 2016-17
onwards. Once the data is available,
the dashboard should include the
headline levels of online victimisation

2/ abed

reported in its public and business
attitudes surveys. The dashboard
should also include the number of
referrals that the Met receives through
Action Fraud, as well as the proportion
of positive and negative outcomes.
And it should include suitable
performance indicators that
demonstrate the work that the Met is
doing to prevent online crime and
disrupt cyber-criminals.

In its response, MOPAC stated that it already hears about the
impact of fraud on businesses through its Business Crime
Change Board which the Deputy Mayor for Policing and
Crime chairs jointly with the Deputy Commissioner, including
the number of positive outcomes of National Fraud
Investigation Bureau referrals from Operation Falcon.

MOPAC is launching a fraud dashboard after the July Business
Crime Change Board. This is about positive outcomes of fraud
reports from Action Fraud.

This recommendation has been accepted in
part: MOPAC says it is launching a fraud
dashboard.

Recommendation 9:
The Met should identify a senior

The Commissioner, in his formal response to the report,
stated that he has appointed Commander Duncan Ball to be

This recommendation has been accepted in
full.




LONDONASSEMBLY

Police and Crime Committee

Online crime: impact tracker

¢/ obed

Committee’s recommendation

Response

Progress

ranking officer (ACPO level), to be
responsible for mainstreaming cyber-
crime across the whole of the force.

the ACPO lead for mainstreaming cyber-crime across the
Met.

Recommendation 10

In August 2015, once the FALCON
command has been operating for a
year, the Met should extend FALCON’s
buddying system outside of the
command. For example, police officers
and staff based in borough teams
could be buddied with those based in
FALCON'’s Volume Fraud Teams.

The Commissioner, in his formal response to the report,
explained that the Met has taken steps to establish informal
support outside of the command, including a formalised
support mechanism between FALCON Volume Fraud Teams

and borough teams. This will include “investigation surgeries”

where advice on specific enquiries outside of FALCON’s remit
can be sought. The response did not include a specific
commitment to introduce a buddying system, however.

This recommendation has been accepted in
part: the Met is taking some steps to help to
integrate the FALCON command with the rest

of the organisation.

Recommendation 11

The Met should set a deadline for when
it wants all staff with public contact
and/or investigative duties to have
undertaken the cyber-crime e-learning
programme. It should also assess
whether it needs to extend Mainstream
Cyber-Crime training to officers and
staff outside of the FALCON command
and, if so, by when.

The Commissioner, in his formal response to the report,
stated that the Met expects all staff that have contact with
the public and/or investigative duties to have undertaken
relevant cyber-crime training.

This recommendation has been accepted.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Agenda Item 6

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY LONDON
Subject: Police and Crime Committee Work
Programme

Report to: Police and Crime Committee

Report of: Executive Director of Secretariat Date: 26 November 2015

This report will be considered in public

1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

Summary

This report sets out the work programme for the Police and Crime Committee.

Recommendations

That the Committee agrees its updated work programme, as set out in paragraph 4.1 of
the report.

That the Committee notes the summary of its site visit on 29 October 2015 to the
Metropolitan Police Specialist Training Centre (MPSTC), as set out in paragraph 4.2 of the
report.

Background

The Committee’s work programme is intended to enable the Committee to effectively fulfil its roles
of holding the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) to account and investigating issues
of importance to policing and crime reduction in London. The Committee’s work involves a range of
activities, including formal meetings with MOPAC, the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) and other
stakeholders, site visits, written consultations and round table meetings.

The Committee will usually meet twice a month. One of the monthly meetings is usually used to
hold a question and answer session with the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime. The
Commissioner of the MPS has been invited to these meetings. The Committee will primarily use
question and answer (Q&A) meetings to investigate topical issues and review MPS performance,
including consideration of MOPAC’s approach to holding the MPS to account.

The Committee’s other monthly meeting is used to consider a particular topic or aspect of policing
and crime in greater detail. These investigations will be conducted either by the full Committee or
working groups. Working groups will have delegated authority to prepare reports on the

Committee’s behalf in consultation with party Group Lead Members. Final reports will be approved

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SET 2AA
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk

Page 75




4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

and published by the full Committee. Where possible, working groups will make use of the dates
scheduled for the Committee’s ‘thematic” meetings.

Issues for Consideration

The work programme has been designed to proactively examine issues of interest but also allows for
flexibility to respond to topical issues and for the Committee to react to MOPAC’s work programme.
Topics will be added to the timetable for Q&A meetings as they arise. The Committee’s work
programme currently includes:

December Thursday 3 December 2015 Thursday 17 December 2015
Thematic meeting — Alcohol Q&A meeting
related crime

January Thursday 14 January 2015 Thursday 28 January 2015
Thematic meeting — Alcohol Q&A meeting
related crime

On 29 October 2015, the Committee visited the Metropolitan Police Specialist Training Centre
(MPSTQ), as part of its ongoing scrutiny of issues related to firearms use, such as Taser and body
worn cameras. The MPSTC was officially opened in April 2003 and provides the capital’s officers with
firearms and public order training. Firearms officers are called to a range of different scenarios
including alarm calls, suspect packages or calls for urgent assistance. In 2014 the MPS attended
around 4,000 firearms incidents, with one fatality." During the site visit, Members had the
opportunity to see some of the training that officers undertake and to raise questions about the
MPS’s use of body worn video and how the use of cameras affects performance - including
mounting options, complaints management, public confidence and satisfaction and criminal justice
outcomes.

Current investigations

The Committee is currently investigating crime on public transport in London. While crime across
the public transport network remains relatively low, challenges exist, such as the rise in sexual
offences and violence against the person. The investigation will consider how to reduce crime and
improve safety on public transport, and how the Mayor is working with key partners to achieve these
goals. At its meeting on 8 October 2015, the Committee heard from academics and campaign
groups about crime on public transport in London, and the challenges and opportunities that exist to
further reduce crime and increase passenger safety. The Committee went on to discuss these
challenges and opportunities with those responsible for passenger safety, including the MPS, British
Transport Police, City of London Police, Transport for London and industry representatives at its
meeting on 12 November 2015. The Committee also went on a site visit to observe a transport
policing operation and had a tour of the London Underground and British Transport Police Control
Centre on 12 November 2015, as part of this scrutiny investigation.

The Committee will shortly begin an investigation into the impact of alcohol on policing London’s
night time economy. London is said to experience a disproportionate level of alcohol related crime
because of the number of night time economy spots.” London Councils suggest that “alcohol is a

' MOPAC Challenge, 20 May 2015

2 MOPAC, Sobriety pilot

Page 76



significant factor in crime and is believed to be a factor in up to half of all violent incidents” in
London.? In December 2014, the Mayor, in response to a question about the rise in violence with
injury in London, suggested that in addition to an increase in reporting, “there is low-level violence
taking place in town centres associated particularly with alcohol and the perpetrators aged typically
between 26 and 41”.* The Committee will examine the level and perception of alcohol related crime
in London, and what MOPAC can do to tackle this issue, including examining the impact of
MOPAC’s compulsory alcohol sobriety trial in south London. The Committee has agreed to use its
meeting slot on 3 December 2015 a for a question and answer session with invited guests on this
topic and it is also proposed that its meeting slot on 14 January 2016 be used for second question
and answer session on this topic.

5. Legal Implications

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

List of appendices to this report: None

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
List of Background Papers: None.

Contact Officer:  Janette Roker, Scrutiny Manager
Telephone: 020 7983 6562
E-mail: janette.roker@london.gov.uk

? London Councils, London key facts
4 Mayor’s Question Time, Question 2014/4963 (Oral), Tuesday, 09 December 2014

Page 77




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes Appendix 1 - Transcript of Q&A

	4 Summary List of Actions
	Appendix 1 - letter from MPS re 21 July meeting

	5 Question and Answer Session with the Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and the Metropolitan Police Service
	Appendix 1 - monthly MOPAC report
	Appendix 2 - Online crime - impact tracker changed margins COLOUR

	6 Police and Crime Committee Work Programme

